Public Document Pack

SOUTH (INNER) AREA COMMITTEE

Meeting to be held in Civic Hall on
Wednesday, 13th February, 2013 at 6.30 pm

MEMBERSHIP
Councillors

D Congreve
A Gabriel (Chair)
A Ogilvie

-

Beeston and Holbeck;
Beeston and Holbeck;
Beeston and Holbeck;

P Davey
M Iqbal
E Nash

-

City and Hunslet;
City and Hunslet;
City and Hunslet;

J Blake
K Groves
P Truswell

-

Middleton Park;
Middleton Park;
Middleton Park;

South East Area Leader:
Shaid Mahmood
Tel: 22 43973

Agenda compiled by:
Phil Garnett
Governance Services Unit
Civic Hall
LEEDS LS1 1UR
Tel: 39 51632

Produced on Recycled Paper

A

A BRIEF EXPLANATION OF
COUNCIL FUNCTIONS AND EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS

There are certain functions that are defined by regulations which can only be carried out at
a meeting of the Full Council or under a Scheme of Delegation approved by the Full
Council. Everything else is an Executive Function and, therefore, is carried out by the
Council’s Executive Board or under a Scheme of Delegation agreed by the Executive
Board.
The Area Committee has some functions which are delegated from full Council and some
Functions which are delegated from the Executive Board. Both functions are kept
separately in order to make it clear where the authority has come from so that if there are
decisions that the Area Committee decides not to make they know which body the
decision should be referred back to.

B

AGENDA

Item
No
1

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS
To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the
press and public will be excluded).
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, written
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before
the meeting.)

2

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
1

To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2

To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3

If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:RESOLVED – That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:

C

Item
No
3

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
LATE ITEMS
To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration.
(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes.)

4

DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY
AND OTHER INTERESTS’
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-18 of
the Members’ Code of Conduct. Also to declare
any other significant interests which the Member
wishes to declare in the public interest, in
accordance with paragraphs 19-20 of the
Members’ Code of Conduct.

5

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence.

6

MINUTES - 9TH JANUARY 2013
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the
meeting held on 9th January 2013.

7

OPEN FORUM
In accordance with Paragraphs 6.24 and 6.25 of
the Area Committee Procedure Rules, at the
discretion of the Chair a period of up to 10 minutes
may be allocated at each ordinary meeting for
members of the public to make representations or
to ask questions on matters within the terms of
reference of the Area Committee. This period of
time may be extended at the discretion of the
Chair. No member of the public shall speak for
more than three minutes in the Open Forum,
except by permission of the Chair.
(10 mins discussion)

D

1-6

Item
No
8

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
HATE CRIME IN INNER SOUTH LEEDS

7 - 20

To receive a report of the Director of Environments
and Neighbourhoods which provides an overview
of reported incidents of hate crime in Inner South
Leeds during 2012 and to raise awareness of the
review of the Hate Crime Strategy and planned
changes to improve on hate crime reporting and
responses by services.
9

WELFARE REFORM IMPACT ON COUNCIL
TENANTS

21 38

To receive a report of the Chief Executive Aire
Valley Homes Leeds, Chief Officer (Revenues &
Benefits) and the South East Area Leader updating
the Committee on Welfare Reform changes that
impact on council tenants and are due to be
implemented in April 2013.
10

ANNUAL REPORT - FOR THE PARKS AND
COUNTRYSIDE SERVICE

39 56

To receive a report of The Chief Officer of Parks
and Countryside which provides an overview of the
service and sets out some of the challenges faced
along with key performance management
initiatives.

11

WELLBEING REPORT FEBRUARY 2013

57 72

To receive a report of Assistant Chief Executive
(Planning, Policy and Improvement) providing the
Area Committee with an update on the current
amount of revenue and capital funding committed
and available via the Area Committee well-being
budgets for Inner South.
12

SUMMARY OF KEY WORK
To receive a report of the Area Leader – South
East Leeds, detailing work by the Area
Management Team on key priorities in the Inner
South Area of Leeds since the last Area
Committee meeting.

E

73 96

Item
No
13

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
DATES, TIMES AND VENUES OF FUTURE
MEETINGS
6:30pm Wednesday 20th March 2013. Venue TBC.

F

Agenda Item 6
SOUTH (INNER) AREA COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, 9TH JANUARY, 2013
PRESENT:

Councillor A Gabriel in the Chair
Councillors J Blake, D Congreve, P Davey,
K Groves, M Iqbal, A Ogilvie and
P Truswell

46

Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents
There were no appeals against the refusal of inspection of documents.

47

Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public
There were no resolutions to exclude the public.

48

Late Items
There were no late items submitted to the agenda.

49

Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other Interests’
There were no declarations made.

50

Apologies for Absence
There were no apologies for absence.

51

Minutes - 21st November 2012
The minutes of the meeting held on 21st November 2012 were approved as a
correct record.

52

Open Forum
In accordance with Paragraphs 6.24 and 6.25 of the Area Committee
Procedure Rules, the Chair allowed a period of up to 10 minutes for members
of the public to make representations or ask questions on matters within the
terms of reference of the Area Committee.
A local resident raised the issue of parking on Dewsbury Road in the area
around the new Iceland store, which has the effect of blocking a public
footpath. The Locality Manager agreed that he would pick this issue up and
work with other agencies and departments to ensure parking regulations are
enforced.
A representative of St Luke’s Cares thanked the Committee for its financial
support which has been on-going since 2006 but that has now ceased. He
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 13th February, 2013

Page 1

confirmed that other ways of financing the service would be looked into but
raised a note of caution that certain areas in South Leeds with high levels of
anti-social behaviour need greater service provision.
53

Domestic Violence in Inner South Leeds
The Director of Environment & Neighbourhoods submitted a report which
brought to Members’ attention an overview of the levels of reported domestic
violence in Inner South Leeds. It also provided information on specialist
services and initiatives that are available to residents to offer support around
the issue and improve service responses.
The following were in attendance to answer Member questions:
Gerry Shevlin (Area Community Safety Co-ordinator); and
Lucy Fishwick (Women’s Health Matters).
Members were pleased with the work that has been undertaken over the last
year and were supportive of this continuing.
Members considered that the current economic climate could potentially have
an effect on domestic violence levels and requested to be informed of any
trends taking place in the Inner South Area of Leeds and also where there are
any gaps in service provision.
Members expressed a desire to support and empower women who are
affected by domestic violence.
Members asked questions about the capacity of the Leeds Domestic Violence
Service and whether it could cope with the number of referrals. Officers
informed Members that this was being monitored.
Members also raised the effect that domestic violence has on children and
that there needs to be greater consideration given to this as they are also
affected. This triggered wider debated about the roles of other professionals
such as teachers and children’s centres which have a role in identifying
domestic violence and providing support.
Members considered that ALMOs also had a role in reducing the impact of
domestic violence in ensuring locks are changed promptly and that homes are
made secure. Members agreed that they would raise this issue with the
appropriate service.

The issue of funding Women’s Health Matters was raised, It was confirmed
that funding is in place until March 2013. Members broadly supported the
continuation of funding on the back of the good work done over the last year
and suggested that a report be brought forward detailing the funding that
would be required for 2013/14.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 13th February, 2013

Page 2

Members also requested a report of hate crimes and the statistics surrounding
these crimes.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the contents of the report be noted;
(b) That a further report be brought to the Committee considering the
figures and trends of domestic violence cases in the Inner South;
(c) That the issue of ensuring council homes are made secure and locks
changed promptly following a case of domestic violence is raised with
the appropriate service; and
(d) That a report be submitted detailing the funding requirements of
Women’s Health Matters for the financial year 2013/14.
54

South and Outer East Locality Team Service Level Agreement
Performance Update
The Locality Manager (South and Outer East Leeds) submitted a report which
provided an update on performance against the SLA between the Inner South
Area Committee and the South – East Environmental Locality Team. This
report covered the period from 1st July 2012 to 31st October 2012.
Members were pleased with the increase in capacity of the service.
Members asked about enforcement in terms of dog fouling and other
environmental offences. Members were informed that after the staffing restructure a greater emphasis will be placed on enforcement.
Members noted the recent positivity amongst staff and noted the care and
responsibility taken within the areas allocated to staff.
Members were of the view that the Inner South Area does not receive
equivalent resources compared to other areas within the city.
Better partnership working with Aire Valley Homes Leeds and the BITMO was
raised as something that could be improved to ensure that all areas of Inner
South are kept clean and tidy.
It was agreed by Members that a task and finish group should established
with a representative of each ward to sit on it.
PCSO training was raised and Members asked whether this had been
completed. The Locality Manager confirmed that this was still outstanding but
would be completed as soon as a suitable date could be arranged with the
Police.

RESOLVED –
(a) That the South Inner Area Committee note the report;
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 13th February, 2013

Page 3

(b) That a task and finish group be established consisting of Councillor
Groves; Cllr Ogilvie; and Councillor Iqbal;
(c) That the Locality Manager continue to push for the training of PCSOs

55

Wellbeing Report
The Area Officer presented a report of the Assistant Chief Executive
(Customer Access and Performance). The report provided:
1.

Confirmation of the 2012/13 revenue allocation and the 2011/12 carry
forward figure.

2.

An update on both the revenue and capital elements of the Well being
budget.

3.

Details of revenue funding for consideration and approval.

4.

Details of revenue projects agreed to date (as shown at Appendix 1 to
the report).

5.

Members were also asked to note the current position of the Small
Grants Budget.

RESOLVED –
(a) that the contents of the report be noted;
(b) that the Well Being Budget as set out at paragraph 3.0 be noted;
(c) that the points raised under ring fencing arrangements set out in
paragraph 3.3 of the report be noted and the recommendations of the
Children & Young People’s working group requesting approval of
£106,019 be approved;
(d) that the Well Being revenue projects previously agreed as set out in
Appendix 1 be noted;
(e) that the following be agreed in respect of Wellbeing funding allocations,
as detailed within paragraph 4.0 of the submitted report:
Name of Project
Celebration Event

Name of Delivery Decision
Organisation
Area Support Team
£1,000
Revenue
(£333.33 per ward)
APPROVED

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 13th February, 2013

Page 4

(f) that the small grants situation as set out in paragraph 5.0 to the report
be noted.
56

Summary Of Key Work
The Area Leader submitted a report which provided brief details of the range
of activities with which the Area Support Team are engaged based on the
Area Committee Business Plan priorities and actions, that are not addressed
in greater detail elsewhere on this agenda. It provided opportunities for further
questioning or the opportunity to request a more detailed report on a particular
issue.
Members supported the suggestion that the Champions detailed within
section 4.2 of the report feedback to the Committee on their respective
meeting.
The Community Safety Champion Cllr Groves highlighted the work being
done in this area. Specifically Cllr Groves informed the Committee of on the
positive steps being taken to stop child grooming. Also brought to the
Committee’s attention were the recent developments which have created a
city wide strategy on prostitution. It was acknowledged by Members that
further work on this issue needs to be done including a crackdown on the men
who use prostitutes.
The Health and Wellbeing Champion Councillor Truswell highlighted the work
being done in this area. Members were informed that more work needs to be
completed in terms of working with people to help improve their health rather
than broadcasting messages which people already know and understand.
The large number of takeaways in South Leeds was highlighted as an area of
concern by Members and local residents in attendance. The difficulties in the
application of the planning system were highlighted as a problem which
essentially allows such businesses to appeal Council decisions which are
then likely to be overturned.
The Leeds Citizens Panel was discussed by Members. A local resident
questioned how people were selected to sit on the Panel, and was informed
that the Panel is randomly selected from volunteers.

RESOLVED – that the contents of the report be noted.
57

Dates, Times and Venues of Future Meetings
6:30pm 13th February 2013.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 13th February, 2013

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6

Agenda Item 8
Report author: Gerry
Shevlin/Rebecca Herbert
Tel: 3951656
Report of Director of Environments and Neighbourhoods
Report to South Leeds (Inner) Area Committee
Date: Wednesday 13th February 2013
Subject: Hate Crime in Inner South Leeds
Are specific electoral Wards affected?

Yes

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

No

Beeston &
Holbeck
City &
Hunslet
Middleton
Park

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and
integration?

Yes

No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary of main issues and corporate governance considerations
1.

This report details levels of reported hate crime in Inner South Leeds and proposals to
improve the same.

Recommendations
2.

The Area Committee is asked to:
a) note the contents of the report and make comment as appropriate.

Page 7

1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To bring to Members’ attention an overview of reported incidents of hate crime in Inner
South Leeds during 2012 and to raise awareness of the review of the Hate Crime
Strategy and planned changes to improve on hate crime reporting and responses by
services.

2.0

Background Information

2.1

Members will recall at the January 2012 Area Committee, a report was requested
providing information on this subject.

2.2

The Hate Crime Strategy for Leeds is currently being reviewed by the SMT of Leeds
Community Safety. Further updates on progress of the review will be presented to
Members at a future meeting.

3.0

Reported incidents of Hate Crime in Inner South Leeds

3.1.1

This section provides details of numbers of reported incidents. Improvements to the way
reports are collated are being developed and are discussed later in the report. It should
also be acknowledged that hate crime is an issue that is often under-reported and this is
particularly true of disability related hate crime

3.1.2 The following tables show data from Leeds Anti Social Behaviour Team. Data within
the report is based upon either Enquiries recorded as ASB and responded to by LASBT,
or Cases opened by LASBT. An enquiry is either an initial request for service, or a record
of information received. A case represents investigation and response from the LASBT.

Hate Crime Enquiries City Wide
Disability
Faith
Race
Sexuality
Other
Grand Total

Q1
17
12
119
22
1
171

2011/12
Q2
34
4
143
17
0
198

Q3
21
7
121
11
0
160

Page 8

Q4
10
8
225
25
0
268

Q1
12
2
206
21
0
241

2012/13
Q2
Q3
18
11
3
2
253
197
34
21
0
0
308
231

Q4
0
0
0
0
0
0

LASBT Hate Crime ASB
Enquiries - South
Beeston Holbeck
City Hunslet
Middleton Park
LASBT Hate Crime ASB
Cases Opened- South
Beeston & Holbeck
City & Hunslet
Middleton Park

Q1
6
10
3

2011/12
Q2
Q3
7
6
22
20
8
3

Q1
0
1
1

2011/12
Q2
0
2
2

Q3
0
2
2

Q4
2
8
5

Q4
1
0
2

Q1
3
2
2

2012/13
Q2
Q3
8
4
6
9
7
16

Q4
0
0
0

Q1
3
2
1

2012/13
Q2
Q3
0
1
2
0
2
8

Q4
0
0
0

4.0

Responses to hate crime

4.1

Leeds ASB Team are a multi-agency team. In the south area, the team is comprised of
Leeds City Council, West Yorkshire Police, Victim Support, Aire Valley Homes and Belle
Isle TMO. The team investigate all hate incidents where consent to do so is given by the
victim.

4.2

All hate incidents in Leeds are logged centrally by LASBT as ‘for information only’ or ‘for
response.’ For information only incidents are those reports that are made anonymously,
where the victim does not give consent to share information or take action against the
perpetrators, or where WYP are dealing with the report. This information is discussed at
local Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conferences and used to identify patterns, consider
safeguarding needed in communities, and plan targeted resources.

4.3

‘For response’ enquiries to LASBT receive contact within 24 hours of making a report.
The ASB case officer conducts an initial visit to assess the needs and vulnerabilities of
the victim. The case officer provides reassurance and advice, and will offer support and
referrals to partner agencies including Victim Support. The ASB case officer liaises with
the WYP hate crime co-ordinator to achieve a positive outcome for the victim. The
approach is a victim-centred approach and the officer will be guided by the needs of the
victim.

4.4

Repeat incidents of hate crime or cases where there is a serious risk can be referred with
the victims consent to the Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC). This is
a multi agency group that applies a problem solving approach to resolving the issues for
the victim. The group is also developing its remit to develop responses to tackle
persistent problems in local areas.

5.0

Improvements to Hate Crime Reporting Processes

5.1

A revised Multi Agency Hate Incident Report (MAHIR) form has been developed to
improve the quality of information collected in relation to hate incidents. The form takes
into accounts the 5 monitored strands of hate crime: race, faith, disability, sexual

Page 9

orientation and transgender. It has been amended to include collection of nationality
following feedback about ethnicity codes not being reflective of local communities.
5.2

The MAHIR form is embedded into the Contact Leeds system and all enquiries will be
recorded by Leeds ASB Team.

5.3

Reports can be made to Leeds City Council, West Yorkshire Police, Stop Hate UK and
Hate Incident Reporting Centres. Further information about how to report a hate incident
and details of Hate Incident Reporting Centres can be found in Appendix 1. The
integrated hate crime process was developed so that all hate incidents are centrally
recorded by LASBT in order to give agencies a clearer picture of repeat incidents and
identify repeat victims.

5.4

LASBT are working with Children Services to further develop reporting to make it easier
for schools to report hate incidents. Young people are identified as a gap in reporting.

5.5

LASBT have developed a media plan for 2013 to raise the awareness of hate crime,
particularly in relation to disability hate crime which is significantly under reported. We
have a stock of publicity resources provided through our contract with Stop Hate UK to
raise awareness in local communities. Materials can be targeted towards different
minority groups and are available in a wide array of formats. There is also significant
improvements to the website and use of online social media resources. Discussions are
ongoing with the South Leeds Hate Crime MARAC to ensure that the plan addresses
local needs through the most appropriate partners.

5.6

A training plan for Hate Incident Reporting Centres (HIRC) is being rolled out in 2013 to
support HIRCs in identifying hate incidents and providing reassurance to victims. The
sessions will run on a quarterly basis.

6.0

Corporate Considerations

6.1

Consultation and Engagement

6.1.1 There are no consultation or engagement implications identified as part of this report.
6.2

Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration

6.2.1 This report outlines the approach in south to addressing hate crime. Hate crime is
harmful to communities and individuals. Addressing hate crime promotes the equality
and diversity of the citizens of Leeds and enhances cohesion and integration.
6.3

Council Policies and City Priorities

6.3.1 The activity outlined in this report contribute to targets and priorities set out in the
following council policies:
•

Vision For Leeds

•

Safer and Stronger Communities Plan

Page 10

6.4

Resources and Value for Money

6.4.1 There are no resource implications as a result of this report.
6.5

Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In

6.5.1 All decisions taken by the Area Committee in relation to the delegated functions from
Executive Board are not eligible for Call In.
6.5.2 There are no key or major decisions being made that would be eligible for Call In.
6.5.3 There are no legal implications as a result of this report.
6.6

Risk Management

6.6.1 This report provides an update on work in progress to address hate crime and at this
time no risks are identifiable.
7

Conclusions

7.1

This report summarises the current position with regards to hate crime and the activities
to improve reporting processes. Further information will be provided as part of the annual
community safety report in September 2013.

8

Recommendations

8.1

The Area Committee is asked to:
a) note the contents of the report and make comment as appropriate.

Background documents1
There are no background papers associated with this report

1

The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four years
following the date of the relevant meeting. Accordingly this list does not include documents containing exempt or
confidential information, or any published works. Requests to inspect any background documents should be
submitted to the report author.

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12

Appendix 1

HATE INCIDENT REPORTING CENTRES
Hate Incident Reporting Centres in Leeds are locations where victims of a hate
incident may choose to report an incident and have control over the nature of the
report, the type of investigation and support they need. There are a variety of ways
to report.
Where to report a hate incident:

By phone:
Leeds City Council Hotline

0113 2224402

Leeds City Council Switchboard

0113 222 4444

Aire Valley Homes

0800 915 6660

From a mobile
West North West Homes
From a mobile
East North East Homes
From a mobile
Belle Isle TMO
From a mobile

0113 3984710
0800 915 1113
0113 3984708
0800 915 1600
0113 3984711
0800 3895503
0113 2141833

Stop Hate UK- 24 hour help line

0800 138 1625

West Yorkshire Police

101

In an Emergency

999

Text relay for deaf or hearing impaired:
Dial 18001 before any number above.

By text:
07717 989025

Online:
www.stophateuk.org/tell

By email:
LASBT@leeds.gov.uk
talk@stophateuk.org

Prepared by Rebecca Herbert, Service Development Officer, Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour Team
Email: LASBTCustomerCare@leeds.gov.uk
Date Reviewed: 19 Dec 2012
Date for next review: 13 April 2013

Page 13

Appendix 1

In person:
Visit a Hate Incident Reporting Centre.
A list of Hate Incident Reporting Centres divided by area can be found below.
SOUTH LEEDS:
City One Stop Centre
2 Great George Street
Leeds
LS2 8BA
Dewsbury Road One Stop Centre
190 Dewsbury Road
Leeds
LS10 6PF
Garforth One Stop Centre and Library
Lidgett Lane,
Garforth
LS25 1EH
Kippax Housing Office (Aire Valley Homes)
Hanover Place
Kippax
Leeds
LS25 7LW
Morley Housing Office (Aire Valley Homes)
Town Hall
Queens Street
Leeds
LS27 9DX
Rothwell Housing Office (Aire Valley Homes)
Civic Buildings
Marsh Street
Leeds,
LS26 0AD
St Georges Centre (Aire Valley Homes)
St Georges Road
Middleton
Leeds
LS10 4UZ
Swarcliffe Housing Office (Aire Valley Homes)
32-38 Langbar Gardens
Leeds
LS14 5ES
Belle Isle Tenant Management Organisation
Prepared by Rebecca Herbert, Service Development Officer, Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour Team
Email: LASBTCustomerCare@leeds.gov.uk
Date Reviewed: 19 Dec 2012
Date for next review: 13 April 2013

Page 14

Appendix 1
Aberfield Gate
Belle Isle
Leeds
LS10 3QH

EAST LEEDS:
Osmondthorpe One Stop Centre
81a Wykebeck Mount
Leeds
LS9 0JE
Chapeltown & Harehills Housing Office (ENEHL)
265 Roundhay Road
Leeds
LS8 4HS
Burmantofts Housing Office (ENEHL)
Rigton Lawn
Leeds
LS9 7QA
Chapeltown & Harehills Housing Office (ENEHL)
265 Roundhay Road
Leeds
LS8 4HS
Gipton Housing Office (ENEHL)
95 Foundry Avenue
Leeds
LS8 3NH
Halton Moor & Osmondthorpe Housing Office (ENEHL)
Neville Road
Leeds
LS15 0NW
Tribeca House (ENEHL)
71 Roundhay Road
Leeds
LS7 3BE
Moortown Housing Office (ENEHL)
4 Queenshill Approach
Moortown
Leeds
LS17 6AY
Richmond Hill Housing Office (ENEHL)
8 Walter Crescent
Leeds
LS9 8NG
Prepared by Rebecca Herbert, Service Development Officer, Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour Team
Email: LASBTCustomerCare@leeds.gov.uk
Date Reviewed: 19 Dec 2012
Date for next review: 13 April 2013

Page 15

Appendix 1

Boggart Hill Housing Office (ENEHL)
45 Ramshead Hill
Seacroft
Leeds
Seacroft North Housing Office (ENEHL)
Unit 8,
Seacroft Green
Leeds
LS14 6JD
Seacroft South Housing Office (ENEHL)
90/95 Moresdale Lane
Leeds
LS14 6GG
Wetherby Housing Office (ENEHL)
24 Westgate
Wetherby
Leeds LS22 6NL

West Leeds:
One Stop Centre Aireborough
Micklefield House
New Road Side
Rawdon
Leeds
LS19 6DF
Armley Area Office (WNWHL)
2 Stocks Hill
Armley
Leeds LS12 1UE
Bramley Area Office (WNWHL)
202 Town Street
Bramley
Leeds
LS13 2EP
Horsforth Housing Office (WNWHL)
The Green
Town Street
Leeds
LS18 5JB
Kirkstall Area Office (WNWHL)
45 Kirkstall Lane
Prepared by Rebecca Herbert, Service Development Officer, Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour Team
Email: LASBTCustomerCare@leeds.gov.uk
Date Reviewed: 19 Dec 2012
Date for next review: 13 April 2013

Page 16

Appendix 1
Leeds
LS5 3BE

Little London Housing Office (WNWHL)
Oatland Drive
Leeds
LS7 1SH
Otley & Aireborough Area Office (WNWHL)
8 Borough Gate
Otley
Leeds
LS21 3AL
Pudsey Area Office (WNWHL)
Town Hall
Robin Lane
Leeds
LS28 7BL

Non Council Reporting Centres
Stop Hate UK
PO Box 484
Leeds LS7 9BZ
By phone:
0800 138 1625
By text:
07717 989025
www.stophateuk.org/tell
Online:
Chat:
www.stophateuk.org/talk
Email:
talk@stophateuk.org
Website
www.stophateuk.org

Asha Neighbourhood Centre
43 Stratford Street
Beeston
Leeds
LS11 6JG
Tel No. 0113 2704600
Contact: Zaheeda Khanam

Connect Housing Association
205 Roundhay Road
Leeds
LS8 4HS
Tel No. 0113 2350202
Email: cs@connecthsg.org.uk
Contact: Catherine Boak
Connect in the North
Prepared by Rebecca Herbert, Service Development Officer, Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour Team
Email: LASBTCustomerCare@leeds.gov.uk
Date Reviewed: 19 Dec 2012
Date for next review: 13 April 2013

Page 17

Appendix 1
Bridge House
Balm Road
Leeds
LS10 2TP
Tel No. 0113 2703233
Contact: Cathy Wintergill
Hamara Centre
73 Lodge Lane
Beeston
Leeds
LS11 6ER
Tel No. 0113 277 3330
Contact: Arif Iqbal

Leeds Federated Housing Association
Arthington House
30 Westfield Road
Leeds
LS3 1DE
Tel No. 0113 386 1000
Contact: Stephen Barry – ASB Manager

International Student Office
University of Leeds
Level 11, Ziff Building
Woodhouse Lane
Leeds
LS2 9JT
Contact: Tim Rhodes or Phill Wilcox
Leeds University Student Union
Students Advice Centre
Lifton Place
Leeds
LS2 9JZ
Contact:
Tel No. 0113 3801242 - B J Fisher – Community Officer
Tel No. 0113 3801244 – C Hopper – Equality & Diversity Officer
Tel No. 0113 3801245 – K A Siddall – Welfare Off
Unity Housing Association
113/117 Chapeltown Road
Leeds
LS7 3HY
Tel No. 0113 2007700
Contact: Duncan Lee

If your organisation requires training, please contact Andrew Bolland, Stop
Hate UK on 0113 2935100.
Prepared by Rebecca Herbert, Service Development Officer, Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour Team
Email: LASBTCustomerCare@leeds.gov.uk
Date Reviewed: 19 Dec 2012
Date for next review: 13 April 2013

Page 18

Appendix 1

Prepared by Rebecca Herbert, Service Development Officer, Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour Team
Email: LASBTCustomerCare@leeds.gov.uk
Date Reviewed: 19 Dec 2012
Date for next review: 13 April 2013

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20

Agenda Item 9
Report authors: Steve Carey/ Simon
Costigan/Gavin Forster

Joint Report of the Chief Executive Aire Valley Homes Leeds, Chief Officer
(Revenues & Benefits) and South East Area Leader
Report to Inner South Area Committee
Date: Wednesday 13th February 2013
Subject: Welfare Reform Impact On Council Tenants
Yes

Are specific electoral Wards affected?
If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

No

Beeston &
Holbeck
City &
Hunslet
Middleton
Park

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and
integration?

Yes

No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary of main issues
1.

A number of welfare reforms come into effect from April 2013 which will see:
x Social sector size criteria changes;

x Reductions in Council Tax Support; and

x The implementation of local welfare schemes following the abolition of elements
of the Social Fund.
2.

There has been considerable activity undertaken to ensure that tenants and Council
Taxpayers are aware of and understand the implications of the changes. Further
work will take place in March to provide personalised information to those directly
affected as well as providing general guides to Elected Members on the help that is
available.

Page 21

3.

The changes set out above have to be implemented by local councils and are all on
track to take effect from April 2013. Other changes due to come into effect from
April 2013 have been deferred slightly:
x The Benefit Cap, whereby DWP will tell Local Authorities which cases to apply
the cap to, will now come into effect in ‘the summer’
x Personal Independence Payments, which replaces Disability Living Allowance,
will come into effect in June 2013 for new claims with most existing DLA claims
not being reviewed until October 2015.

Recommendations
4.

The Area Committee is asked to:
(a) note work done to date by ALMOs and the Council to prepare for the
introduction of Welfare Reform changes;
(b) invite the Area Leader South East Leeds to develop a bespoke report in relation
to current challenges presented for citizens in the Inner South Area Committee
Area and current and future activity to address those challenges.

Page 22

1

Purpose of this report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to update Inner South Area Committee on Welfare
Reform changes that impact on council tenants and are due to be implemented in
April 2013. It also summarises work that is currently being undertaken to prepare
tenants for those changes and for future changes that will impact later in the year.

2

Background information

2.1

The Welfare Reform Act 2012 continues to introduce a national programme of
reforms and changes to the Welfare Benefit system. The focus for the reforms is on
benefits for working age people whilst people of pensionable age remain largely
unaffected by the reforms. The drivers for the reforms are that people should be
better off being in work rather than on benefits and that the overall costs of benefits
should be reduced.

2.2

The main thrust of the reforms are the introduction of a “Universal Credit” which will
replace a range of existing means tested benefits and tax credits for people of
working age starting from October 2013. The Act follows the November 2010 White
Paper “Universal Credit - Welfare Works” which outlines the Government’s proposals
for reforming welfare to improve incentives to work, simplify the existing welfare
benefits system and tackle administrative complexity.

2.3

Besides introducing Universal Credit and related measures, the Act makes the
following significant changes to the current Benefit systems that are due to be
implemented at different stages during 2013:x

x
x

x

Personal Independence Payments replace the current Disability Living
Allowance starting with new claims in June 2013;
Social Sector Size Criteria will result in housing benefit entitlement being
reduced for working age tenants living in Council or Housing Association homes
where the household is deemed to have more bedrooms than they require;
Local Council Tax Support replaces Council Tax Benefit which is to be abolished
from April 2013, with new local schemes of Council Tax support decided by
Councils and a national scheme for pensioners. Local schemes will apply to
working age customers only with the Government prescribing a national scheme
for those customers of pension age. The cost of both the local scheme for
working age customers and the national scheme for pension age has to be met
by Councils from reduced funding to be provided by Government;
Social Fund Changes mean Community Care Grants and Crisis Loans for Living
Expenses elements of the Social Fund will be abolished from April 2013. The
funding for these schemes will be devolved to local Councils with an expectation
from the Government that “the funding be concentrated on those facing greatest
difficulty in managing their income and to enable a more flexible response to
unavoidable needs, perhaps through a mix of cash or goods and aligning with
the wider range of local support local authorities / devolved administrations
already offer”;

Page 23

x

A Benefit Cap will result in the total benefit that a family can receive being
limited to £500 per week for working age families and £350 per week for single
claimants. There will be some exemptions for tenants working at least 24 hours
a week, tenants getting disability benefits and households where a child is
getting a disability benefit, all of whom will be exempt from the cap.

3

Main issues

3.1

Social Sector Size Criteria (SSSC)

3.1.1

As from April 2013 this reform introduces changes for ALMO and Housing
Association claimants on Housing Benefit that are of working age and that are
living in a property that is deemed to be too large for their needs - too many
bedrooms for the number of occupiers. Those tenants that are affected will have
a percentage reduction in housing benefit applied as follows:x
x

14% reduction for 1 bedroom more than required;
25% reduction for 2 or more bedrooms than required.

3.1.2

Collectively the ALMOs and the Council have been making preparations for the
implementation of Social Sector Size Criteria (SSSC). The SSSC will have a
significant impact in Leeds with over 8,000 households known to be affected in
the City. A breakdown of the numbers affected by ward is shown at Appendix 1
along with value of cuts in Housing Benefit by ward.

3.1.3

In July 2012 all the ALMOs/BITMO and Housing Associations undertook to
contact tenants who data at that time indicated would be affected by SSSC
changes. A further data extract was undertaken in November 2012 to identify
changes to the numbers affected. Overall, the number had reduced but the
extract identifies an additional 880 tenants that would be affected by the changes.

3.1.4

A statement is attached at Appendix 2 which details the visits/contacts and the
potential implications such as customers saying they will be unable to continue to
live at their properties due to affordability and requesting to downsize. The
Central and Corporate Scrutiny Board has set up a working group to consider the
collection and recovery issues arising from this reform and the changes to
Council Tax Benefit and will be making recommendations to Executive Board on
collection and recovery activity. The terms of reference for the working group are
attached at Appendix 3. As indicated the ALMOs have been taking steps to
ensure that tenant are supported where possible to deal with the changes. A
statement setting out issues raised by the ALMOs and activities underway to
manage the impacts is attached at appendix 4.

3.2

Benefit Cap

3.2.1

The Department for Work and Pension has written to councils to say that the
implementation of the Benefit Cap will be deferred and will be implemented ‘in the
Summer of 2013’. In the meantime, DWP will test the processes for applying the
Cap within 4 London Boroughs before rolling out the processes nationally.
Although Councils will be required to operate and apply the new rules on the
Benefit Cap, the responsibility for identifying families affected by the Benefit Cap

Page 24

lies with the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP). Recent data from DWP
suggests that over 500 families in Leeds will be affected by the Benefit Cap and
DWP has written to all those families likely to be affected. Home visits have also
been undertaken by Revenues and Benefits and ALMO staff to ensure people
affected are made aware of the changes.
3.3

Discretionary Housing Payments

3.3.1

DWP has now notified the council of its Discretionary Housing Payments funding
to help deal with the impacts of the Social Sector Size Criteria. In total Leeds will
receive £1.92m in Government funding in 13/14 for Discretionary Housing
Payments. This is an increase of just over £1m in funding compared to the
allocation in 12/13 with the increase intended to recognise the additional
pressures caused by the Social sector Size Criteria rules and the Benefit Cap.

3.3.2

In November 2012, the Executive Board approved a policy for the award of
Discretionary Housing Payments that prioritises awards to:
x
x
x
x

People with disabilities living in significantly adapted accommodation;
Foster carers and kinship carers;
People requiring additional rooms to accommodate access to children
arrangements;
Pregnant women taking in a new tenancy that takes account of the expected
birth.

3.3.3

Awards will be administered by Revenues and Benefits with applications in
relation to Social Sector Size Criteria requiring ALMO validation around housing
need and availability of alternative accommodation in the area. This is expected
to help ensure that funding is targeted to those priority cases with few options to
deal with the change.

3.4

Localised Council Tax Support

3.4.1

The Government’s Local Government Finance Act 2012 received Royal Assent
on 1st November 2012 and requires that Councils put in place local schemes of
Council Tax support by 31st January 2013 to replace Council Tax Benefit. The
Government has confirmed that the funding for the 13/14 Leeds scheme will be
£49.2m which represents a £5.2m reduction in funding compared to 12/13
Council Tax Benefit projected costs of £54.4m.

3.4.2

Council met in January 2013 to approve a local scheme of Council Tax Support
that sees:

x The Council and precepting authorities putting additional funding into the local
scheme to protect certain vulnerable groups from reductions in support. The
groups to be protected are: lone parents with children u5, carers, people
getting the severe or enhanced disability premium and people in receipt of
Armed Forces Compensation Payments (war pensioners and war widows;

Page 25

x Council Tax support for the remaining working age customers reduced by
19%. Appendix 1 also shows the impact of the change at ward level. The
collection of issues arising from the local scheme are also being considered as
part of the Scrutiny Board Working Group review.
3.5

Local Welfare Scheme

3.5.1

Leeds will receive £2.8m scheme funding in both 13/14 and 14/15 to run a local
welfare scheme. The funding has been devolved to local councils as a result of
the abolition of Community Care Grants (CCG) and Crisis Loans for Living
Expenses (CL). The funding represents the amount that was spent on CCGs and
CLs by Jobcentre plus in 11/12.

3.5.2

At its November meeting, Executive Board approved a scheme design for local
welfare provision in Leeds that aims to:
x

x

x

x

support people to return or remain in the community without the need for
extra care;
support the most vulnerable in urgent situations through signposting to the
most appropriate support services or through provision of goods
engage individuals with appropriate support services where needed to
prevent repeat applications and develop resilience
support the most vulnerable in a holistic way that will have a positive effect
and minimise cash payments.

3.5.3

As well as providing direct support, the report also received approval for scheme
funding to be spent on developing initiatives that would help with addressing
future demand and supporting a more sustainable scheme in the event of change
to funding. This includes initiatives aimed at increasing provision of debt and
benefit advice, promoting financial inclusion primarily through Leeds City Credit
Union, supporting the Furniture re-use network and supporting Third Sector
organisations.

3.5.4

A brief consultation exercise is underway with all Elected Members and a further
report will be presented to Executive Board in March 2013 setting out the full
scope of the scheme and more detailed eligibility criteria for consideration.

3.6

Universal Credit

3.6.1

Implementation is planed from October 2013 but there are indications that this
timetable may slip.
x

x

The ‘Pathfinder’ planned for April 2013 will go ahead at the end of April but
will now deal only with the more straightforward single Jobseekers Allowance
claimants who are not homeowners, have no children and who already have
bank accounts;
The national roll out from October 2013 is now more likely to be a
geographical or sector roll out with further details to follow about the planned
migration of Housing Benefit cases to Universal Credit.

Page 26

3.6.2

DWP are expected to issue a statement at the end of January 2013 with the
details of the roll out intentions. At the same time DWP are also due to issue a
statement about the way face-to-face services will be commissioned for Universal
Credit. It is recognised by DWP that some people will need help to access
Universal Credit online and with budgeting requirements. The commissioned
face-to-face service is intended to provide that support. Local Authorities are
expected to be the lead agencies in providing this support.

3.7

Communicating the changes

3.7.1

Each year in March, Revenues and Benefits is required to issue Council tax bills
and Benefit Notifications to all its customers informing them of their new Council
tax liability and, where appropriate, their new Housing Benefit and Council Tax
Benefit entitlement. This results in over 330,000 Council Tax bills being issued
and around 85,000 benefit notification letters being issued.

3.7.2

This year the intention is to include targeted information to those affected by the
SSSC changes and Council Tax Support changes so that they:
a)
b)
c)
d)

Understand why their benefit has changed;
Understand the importance of paying their rent and Council Tax;
Are encouraged to open bank accounts, particularly through the promotion of
Leeds City Credit Union; and
Know who to contact and where to go for additional support.

The information is currently being developed by Revenues and Benefits working
closely with ALMOs, Housing Associations and Customer Services.
3.7.3

It is also intended to provide a ‘guide’ sheet for all elected members giving a
synopsis of the changes and providing details of where people can go for help.
This will also include details of the Local Welfare Scheme that will replace
elements of the Social Fund (see below).

3.7.4

The cross ALMO / BITMO action plan (now Version 8) has been updated
ensuring that it links to the citywide Welfare Reform Communication Plan and
Welfare Reform Strategy.

3.7.5

A number of joint Welfare Reform ‘Roadshows’ took place across the city
between October 2012 and January 2013.

3.7.6

Further Roadshows will take place between February and March 2013.

4

Corporate Considerations

5.1

Consultation and Engagement

5.1.1

Extensive consultation is taking place on Welfare Reform as detailed above.

Page 27

5.2

Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration

5.21

There are a number of issues in relation to equality and diversity and, particularly,
cohesion and integration that are being picked up as part of the city-wide Welfare
Reform Strategy.

5.3

Council policies and City Priorities

5.3.1

A number of policy change recommendations are being considered by the
Council’s Executive Board due to the introduction

5.4

Resources and value for money

5.4.1

Additional staffing resources will be required both pre-introduction of Welfare
Reform and as the changes are introduced to work with those tenants who are
affected by the changes. Some provision has been made within HRA budget
provision to mitigate the impact of the changes particularly in so far as debt
provision is concerned.

5.5

Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In

5.5.1

There are no legal implications, access to information or call in implications in so
far as this Report is concerned.

5.6

Risk Management

5.6.1

The introduction of Welfare Reform is a major risk and is logged on the Council’s
corporate Risk Register.

6

Conclusions

6.1

The introduction of Welfare Reform will have major implications for tenants living
in the AVHL area. Work is well underway to inform those affected of the changes
and to develop personal strategies with them to minimise where possible the
financial impact of those changes.

7

Recommendations

7.1

The Area Committee is asked to:
(a) note work done to date by ALMOs and the Council to prepare for the
introduction of Welfare Reform changes;
(b) invite the Area Leader South East Leeds to develop a bespoke report in
relation to current challenges presented for citizens in the Inner South Area
Committee Area and current and future activity to address those challenges.

8

Background documents1

1

The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four
years following the date of the relevant meeting. Accordingly this list does not include documents containing

Page 28

8.1

There are no associated documents with this report.

exempt or confidential information, or any published works. Requests to inspect any background documents
should be submitted to the report author.

Page 29

Page 30

67
397
297
341
646
63
358
215
152
306
68
383
53
25
20
105
316
632
100
364
496
53
75

Armley

BeestonandHolbeck

BramleyandStanningley

BurmantoftsandRichmondHill

CalverleyandFarsley

ChapelAllerton

CityandHunslet

CrossGatesandWhinmoor

FarnleyandWortley

GarforthandSwillington

GiptonandHarehills

GuiseleyandRawdon

Harewood

Headingley

Horsforth

HydeParkandWoodhouse

KillingbeckandSeacroft

KippaxandMethley

Kirkstall

MiddletonPark

Moortown

MorleyNorth

140

Alwoodley

ArdsleyandRobinHood

38

Under
occupancy:
ALMOs

4

83

116

27

9

78

180

6

31

4

158

3

7

22

129

176

6

141

15

31

100

21

40

2

UnderͲ
occupancy:Hsg
Assoc

545

571

1906

1225

477

1848

1605

360

443

165

329

2853

319

1174

839

2035

1642

445

2761

1325

1729

2030

511

674

356

CouncilTax
Support

NumberOfClaimsAffectedByWard

AdelandWharfedale



WardName

£19,338.69
£82,314.19
£71,330.94
£2,977.68

£215,846.92
£292,334.22
£30,432.23
£41,717.31

£71,132.84

£78,210.87

£244,906.13

£154,303.67

£65,207.31

£235,569.24

£201,009.59

£50,508.24

£5,567.31

£43,972.82

£54,397.96

£2,477.38

£31,864.41

£361,187.21

£66,430.36

£114,937.22

£224,905.51

£43,708.92

£382,430.01

£1,679.28

£40,105.80

£150,278.26

£109,091.50

£146,985.94

£5,683.00

£173,390.30

£169,677.55

£15,806.74

£94,779.02

£259,764.17

£4,162.92

£97,408.41

£127,574.57

£212,123.30

£60,243.68

£136,752.40

£216,858.80

£62,237.58

£50,067.99

£6,049.15

£38,932.92

£346,989.95

£22,823.20

£106,575.92

£341,550.13

£170,454.90

£12,898.15

£10,917.76

£204,453.93

£223,290.37

£26,686.18

£21,525.80

£159,029.69

£258,491.33

£68,393.90

£93,182.43

£17,018.68

£13,322.37
£82,457.81

£40,308.36

£33,194.41

£75,513.41
£210,792.80

£1,610.92

£26,333.81

£48,138.23

UnderͲoccupancy: CouncilTax
HsgAssoc
Support

UnderͲoccupancy:
ALMOs

AnnualDecreaseInHousingBenefitByWard

£115,827.83

£179,974.04

£619,554.54

£389,489.27

£137,204.98

£672,397.20

£517,673.08

£114,914.84

£85,789.33

£43,704.85

£78,314.61

£701,029.94

£85,494.00

£329,351.55

£219,677.26

£484,747.15

£565,734.51

£107,219.64

£795,116.01

£385,826.59

£403,845.85

£551,741.94

£122,024.63

£201,890.25

£76,082.95

TotalBenefit
Loss

Appendix 1

Page 31

66
261
146
55

Rothwell

Roundhay

TempleNewsam

Weetwood

Wetherby
6748

157

Pudsey

GrandTotal

80
139

OtleyandYeadon

134

MorleySouth

1577

7

17

47

37

31

22

23

4

33124

233

691

921

611

528

694

535

744

£2,614.61
£16,323.94
£18,459.76
£22,885.81
£29,123.24
£35,072.99
£11,826.51
£4,311.58
£1,200,915.83

£71,319.01
£48,262.62
£82,106.35
£95,572.34
£35,927.66
£160,570.16
£79,676.82
£33,893.20
£3,902,750.73

£4,290,878.27

£32,794.59

£91,074.83

£119,062.50

£86,338.75

£69,612.21

£93,669.81

£72,526.71

£96,891.97

£9,394,544.82

£70,999.37

£182,578.15

£314,705.64

£151,389.65

£188,070.36

£194,235.91

£137,113.28

£170,825.60

Page 32

84%
17%

91.7%
8.3%
9.3%
5%
16.8%
70.2%
30.8%
0.6%
3.5%
0.6%
3.5%
4.5%
47.2%

56%
34%
9%
1%

477
267
2298
2107
191
197
106
351
1480
648
13
73
12
73
94
995

196
119
30
6
0

%

2775
2333

ENEHL

205
88
13
1
0

386
505
167
65
20
133
29
112

121
2070
1648
20
216
47
307

433

2503

WNWHL

9%
3%
4%
3%
10%
3%
25%

88
33
39
28
95
35
250

122
57
4
0
0

67%
29%
4%
0.3%
0

66%
30%
2%
0%
0%

3%

33

77%
1.2%
13%
3%
19%
23%
30%
10%
4%
1.2%
8%
19%
7%

21%

43%

%

76%
24%
8%
6%
20%

350

889

1665

AVHL

141
1315
995
320
78
60
183

17%

%

18
17
4
2
0

121
32
3
9
2
26
3
NA

11
191
152
13
30
15
41

47

238
163

BITMO

** Please note some tenants are considering more than one option as a response to SSSC.

Original Number of tenants
Affected
Completed Visits
Tenants no longer Affected per
LBS list 26/10/12
Number already visited from
LBS list of 26/10/12
Revised Total
Completed Visits / Contacts
No response to contacts
Family Size Dispute
Property Size Dispute
Transfer Requested * see below
Cover Shortfall from Income /
Benefits
Seek Employment
Plan to move to other tenure
Seek Lodger
Foster Carers
In adapted Properties
Access to Children or Applying
Tenants considered High Risk
* Bedroom Requirements of those
requesting a transfer
1 Bedroom
2 Bedrooms
3 Bedrooms
4 Bedrooms
5 Bedrooms

Welfare Reform Strategy Board - 16th January 2013
Social Sector Size Criteria - Update on Contacts/Visits Undertake to Date

43.9%
41.46%
12.5%
9.8%
0

79.6%
21.1%
2%
5.9%
1.3%
17.1%.
2.%

79.6%
6.8%
19.7%
9.9%
27%

20%

68.5%

%

541
281
51
9

2020
1273
216
186
62
327
161
1357

540
5874
5060
544
521
228
882

1307

7181

CITY

40%
25%
4%
4%
1%
6%
3%
27%

86%
9%
10%
5%
17%

%

Appendix 2

Appendix 3
SCRUTINY BOARD (RESOURCES AND COUNCIL SERVICES)
WELFARE BENEFIT CHANGES – MANAGING THE IMPLICATIONS OF ‘UNDER
OCCUPANCY’ AND COUNCIL TAX CHANGES IN COUNCIL OR HOUSING
ASSOCIATION PROPERTIES
TERMS OF REFERENCE
1.0

Introduction

1.1

From April 2013 the amount of Housing Benefit paid to working age tenants in Council or
RSL properties will be reduced where they have more bedrooms than the family needs.
Also Council Tax Benefit is abolished from April 2013 to be replaced by local schemes of
Council Tax Support. On 12th December 2013 Executive Board approved for submission
to Full Council a scheme which means that working age recipients face a reduction of
19%

2.0

Scope of the inquiry

2.1

The purpose of this review is to consider the likely effects of these benefit changes on
those people deemed to be living in property with more bedrooms than they need and to
make an assessment of and, where appropriate, make recommendations on the following
areas:
x
x
x
x
x

How the Council responds to those tenants who fall into financial arrears due to the
changes
The consequences of the Council’s approach to the management of financial arrears
on other Council policies, for example the Lettings policy and tenant strategy
The consequences of the Council’s approach to the management of financial arrears
on the potential rise in homelessness and the reduction in accommodation available
for the most vulnerable
The consequences of the Council’s approach to the management of financial arrears
on the finances of the Council and major precepting authorities and the implications
for the Housing Revenue Account
local measures to deal with the potential consequences of the reforms, such as the
encouragement of sound financial management through information, advice and
education

3.0

Comments of the relevant Director and Executive Member

3.1

In line with Scrutiny Board Procedure Rule 12.1 where a Scrutiny Board undertakes an
Inquiry the Scrutiny Board shall consult with any relevant Director and Executive Member
on the terms of reference. (to be done)

4.0

Timetable for the inquiry

4.1

The Inquiry will take place over a number of sessions and will be conducted by a working
group.

Page 33

4.2

The length of the Inquiry is subject to change. It is anticipated
produced January 2013.

5.0

Submission of evidence

5.1

Session one – December 2012
x
x
x
x
x

5.2

To understand the size of the cohort within scope of the inquiry
To understand the financial challenges faced by those in ‘under occupancy.’ and any
predictions/projections on the likely consequences of the reforms
To understand the discretionary powers available to the Council to assist tenants.
To understand any statutory constraints
To understand current recovery procedures/policy

Session two – January 2013
x
x
x

5.3

that a final report will be

To look at best practice in other Core Cities
To consider policy options
To consider local measures to deal with the potential consequences of the reforms,
such as the encouragement of sound financial management through information,
advice and education

Session three – Full Board 21st January 2013
x

To consider the draft recommendations arising from the review and to agree the
Board’s final report.

6.0

Witnesses

6.1

The following witnesses have been identified as possible contributors to the Inquiry:
(order to be determined)
Cllr B Atha – Executive lead
Steve Carey – Chief Benefits and Revenues officer
Jill Wildman – Director of Housing, East NE Homes
Paul Broughton – Chief Customer Access Officer
Officers who are involved in recovery
Liz Cook – Housing Services
Dave Levitt – Recovery Manager, Revenues and Benefits
RSL rep
Rep of a tenants group?
CAB rep?
Mike Woods – Principal Finance Manager, Financial Development
Richard Ellis – Head of Finance, Environments and Neighbourhoods

Page 34

7.0

Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration

7.1

The Equality Improvement Priorities 2011 to 2015 have been developed to ensure our
legal duties are met under the Equality Act 2010. The priorities will help the council to
achieve its ambition to be the best City in the UK and ensure that as a city work takes
place to reduce disadvantage, discrimination and inequalities of opportunity.

7.2

Equality and diversity will be a consideration throughout the Scrutiny Inquiry and due
regard will be given to equality through the use of evidence, written and verbal, outcomes
from consultation and engagement activities.

7.3

The Scrutiny Board may engage and involve interested groups and individuals (both
internal and external to the council) to inform recommendations.

7.4

Where an impact has been identified this will be reflected in the final inquiry report, post
inquiry. Where a Scrutiny Board recommendation is agreed the individual, organisation or
group responsible for implementation or delivery should give due regard to equality and
diversity, conducting impact assessments where it is deemed appropriate.

8.0

Post inquiry report monitoring arrangements

8.1

Following the completion of the Scrutiny inquiry and the publication of the final inquiry
report and recommendations, the implementation of the agreed recommendations will be
monitored.

8.2

The final inquiry report will include information on the detailed arrangements for how the
implementation of recommendations will be monitored.

9.0

Measures of success

9.1

It is important to consider how the Scrutiny Board will deem if their inquiry has been
successful in making a difference to local people. Some measures of success may be
obvious at the initial stages of an inquiry and can be included in these terms of reference.
Other measures of success may become apparent as the inquiry progresses and
discussions take place.

Page 35

Appendix 4
Issues and activities arising from ALMOs
1.

The implementation of SSSC will present the Council with a number of complex and
interlinked issues to resolve. Where possible we have to prevent financial hardship
affecting tenants whilst maximising rental income so as not to have an adverse impact on
the Housing Revenue Account Business Plan. Moving households to minimise financial
hardship will increase void turn-over costs and not necessarily make best use of stock
with such high demand for housing. A number of actions and issues have been
highlighted that need to be considered and the Council asked to take decisions on prior
to the introduction of the changes:x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x
x
x

Consider the re-designation of certain properties across the city i.e. 2 bedroom multistorey flats, 4 and 5 bedroom houses;
Consider a review of Local Lettings Policies and the policy on re-housing children at
height;
Consider a reduction in the percentage of Date of Registration Quota properties to
allow more properties to be let to customers in housing need;
Consider awarding priority to affected tenants (those in receipt of Discretionary
Housing Payment and subject to the released properties being re-lettable at full
occupancy). Other options include mutual exchange;
Consider allowing affected tenants who move to private rented sector to retain their
priority after they move;
Develop guidelines setting out when it will be appropriate for ALMOs to take
possession action in relation to rent arrears arising from SSSC;
Review of Lettings Policy bedroom requirements in relation to Under-occupation;
Consider whether to award higher priority to those tenants overcrowded living in
smaller properties that could be let to under-occupying Council and Housing
Association tenants;
Consider a ‘ring fence’ approach for a proportion of smaller properties to be
advertised to give preference to tenants affected by SSSC;
Consider changes to the rent payment frequency and required method in advance of
Universal Credit.

Alongside the issues highlighted above the Lettings Policy review has commenced and a
number of these issues highlighted will link into the future Lettings Policy and procedures.
There is work in progress cross ALMO / BITMO / Housing Partnerships – other sections
within LCC to consider each of the issues outlined in order that the necessary
preparations can be made.
2.

Within AVHL and other ALMOs/BITMO the following work is also being undertaken for
on-going support for our customers that will be affected by SSSC:x

x

We hit our target to complete an initial visit and attempt to make contact with tenants
affected by SSSC by the end of November to discuss the options available,
undertake income and expenditure assessments to see if tenants are able to afford
to pay the increased charge and give advice on rehousing options should tenants
wish to move to smaller accommodation;
From the end of November we have been making follow up visits to those tenants
who did not respond to our initial attempt to contact them (no access cases);

Page 36

x
x

We have started to work through the latest revised list of tenants who have been
identified as being affected by SSSC due to a change in their circumstances or
because they are new Housing Benefit claimants;
We are providing more intensive support and advice to tenants who have told us that
they don’t want to move from their current home but who tell us they will not have the
available income to pay the increased rent. This includes:o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

x

x
x

ensuring tenants are claiming all eligible benefits ,
budgeting advice and setting up payment by Direct Debit;
debt advice and referral to specialist debt support agencies;
referrals to Leeds City Credit Union to refinance high interest loans or set up
bill payment accounts;
assistance and advice with establishing bank accounts and direct debits for
those who don’t currently have bank accounts;
identifying tenants eligible for Discretionary Housing Payments and assisting
in completing application forms;
Outlining financial Implications for tenants considering taking in lodgers or
boarders;
Further advice on moving home options;
Tenants identified with vulnerabilities and support needs will be referred for
specialist support through Independent Living Teams.

Tenants who have told us they wish to move are being contacted to ensure they fully
understand the Choice Based Letting system and any Letting Policy issues that may
affect them. This will ensure they are bidding most effectively to maximise their
chances of being offered an alternative smaller property. Mutual Exchanges will be
encouraged and we will look to actively link tenants together to facilitate exchanges.
We are also planning local Mutual Exchange Swop Shop events to bring interested
tenants together to help identify other tenants they may consider swopping with.
Information on how to access Housing Association properties is also being provided.
Further general advice and information will be provided via newsletter articles and
targeted letters running up to April 2013.
We are working with other partners and voluntary groups to ensure they are fully
prepared for direct approaches made to their organisations.

Leeds City Council’s Telephone Contact Centre and One Stop Centre staff will continue
to be briefed and trained to ensure they are providing appropriate advice and can refer
tenants to ALMOs for assistance.

Page 37

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38

Agenda Item 10
Report author: Sean Flesher
Tel: 3957451
Report of The Chief Officer of Parks and Countryside
Report to South Inner Area Committee
Date: Wednesday 13th February 2013
Subject: Annual Report – for the Parks and Countryside Service
Yes

Are specific electoral Wards affected?
If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

No

Beeston &
Holbeck
City &
Hunslet
Middleton
Park

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and
integration?

Yes

No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary of main issues
1.
2.

3.

4.
5.

The report provides an area profile of key assets, information on park usage and a
customer based perspective of the quality of the assets and services provided.
It highlights the current progress towards Leeds Quality Park (LQP) status for
community parks in the area. It provides the costs of achieving and retaining LQP
status in community parks up to the year 2020.
The report details capital improvements in community parks, sport pitches and fixed
play in the area for the last 12 months and planned improvements to be delivered in
the next 12 months.
It gives a detailed breakdown of events and volunteering in the area.
It gives an overview of the Streetscene Grounds Maintenance contract considering
performance for grass cutting in 2012. It sets out the specification and how this is
developing alongside suggesting increased engagement in performance monitoring.
Recommendations

6.

The Area Committee is requested to note the content of the report and to
communicate priorities for investment in community parks, playing pitches and fixed
play facilities in light of the issues raised.

Page 39

1

Purpose of this report

1.1

This report seeks to further develop the relationship between the Parks and
Countryside service and the South Inner Area Committee, as agreed at Executive
Board.

1.2

It provides an overview of the service and sets out some of the challenges faced
along with key performance management initiatives. In addition it seeks to provide a
positive way forward for delivering the extended role of the Area Committee.

1.3

In particular it sets out at an area level progress made in attaining Leeds Quality
Park standard. It also sets out investment needs to attain LQP standards and to
retain them.

2

Background information
Service Description

2.1

Leeds City Council has one of the largest fully inclusive local authority Parks and
Countryside services, managing almost 4,000 hectares of parks and green space.
This includes 7 major parks, 62 community parks and 95 recreation grounds and
391 local green spaces, which include 144 playgrounds and 500 sports facilities
ranging from skateboard parks to golf courses, and which play host to 600 events
annually. The service also manages a nursery which produces over 4 million
bedding plants each year, 97 allotment sites, over 800km of Public Right of Way
(PROW), and 156 nature conservation sites, as well as 22 cemeteries and three
crematoria.

2.2

The 2009 Parks and Countryside residents survey showed that the service attracts
almost 68 million visits each year from Leeds’ residents alone, and that
approximately 96% of these are regular park users. These range from anybody
using a park for informal recreation (e.g. walking, observing nature) to people who
take part in formal activities (e.g. football clubs, conservation volunteers or to attend
events). The user surveys also evidenced that 10m visits are made to our green
space by Young People (12-19) compared to 3.6m by Children (5-11).
Description of Priority Advisory Function

2.3

The priority advisory function for Area Committees relates to community parks
provision that have a wide range of facilities, including general recreation, sports
pitches, play and formal and informal horticultural facilities.

2.4

Where developments are less significant or only impact on one site then ward
members and community groups will be informed and consulted using established
procedures. It is important to note that good levels of engagement with ward
members exist and this function seeks to enhance this engagement.

Page 40

3

Main issues
Area Profile of the Service

3.1

The following table summarises community green space assets managed by Parks
and Countryside in the South Inner Area Committee:
Asset
Community parks
Playing Pitches:
Football
Rugby League
Bowling greens
Playgrounds
Multi-use games areas
Skate parks

Quantity
5
26
6
13
16
4
3

Volunteering in the Parks and Countryside Service
3.2

3.3

The Service continues to focus on increasing the number of volunteers and groups
working in the area. There has been a significant increase in the value of activities
which take place particularly in the area of corporate volunteering. Our emphasis for
the next 12 months will be to :
•

Seek to increase corporate volunteering working in partnership with Leeds
Ahead.

•

Continue to improve involvement with the many “in bloom” groups in Leeds.

•

It is an ambition is to have a volunteer group for every community park where
there is a site based gardener.
It is estimated that volunteers across all groups contribute nearly 2,150 days of
voluntary work in the South Inner area over a 12 month period. The tables below
give details of works undertaken in South Inner since November 2011 and the
active groups in the area Committee;

Table 1 - Work undertaken by volunteers working with the Rangers;
No. of Vol
Site
Organisation
Task
Days
Hunslet
Cemetery
Middleton
Park

Friends of Hunslet
Cemetery
Arena

Weeding

Best
Friends of Middleton Park
Land Securities
Leeds Parks Volunteers

Leeds Wildlife Volunteers

0.3

Clearing the tramway

9.4

Path Clearance
install steps
Work on shrubberies
around the Rose Garden
Path clearance, weeding
beds
Weeding Rose Garden
Balsam Bash

4.9
2.9

Page 41

9.4
3.9
2.1
0.1

Site

Organisation

Task

Parks For People

Grounds Maintenance,
fence painting, horticulture
footpath edging and veg
cutback
install steps
Installing steps
Remove redundant tree
stakes and guards from
carpark
Removing old waymarkers
Vegetation Clearance
alongside footpaths
Litter pick / footpath
clearance
Plant 8 thousand bulbs

Youth Probation Service

Sharp Lane
(Belle Isle)

Sharp Lane community

Total

Table 2 - Corporate volunteer actions;
Site
Organisation
Task
Arla
Roundabout

Arla

Tree clearance
Tree clearance, litter pick
Tree clearance
Scrub bash

Cross Flatts
Park
Middleton
Park

Sharp Lane
(Belle Isle)

No. of Vol
Days
80.0
2.3
2.9
17.9
10.9
8.0
4.6
10.3
27.9
197.8

No. of Vol
Days
5.8
5.7
7.1
5.1

Eversheds

Maintain Beds

Department of
Health
Investec

Weeding around the Rose
Garden
Step Creation

7.9

O2

4.3

Corporate group

Footpath Scrape, vegetation
clearance
Installing steps

Investek

install steps

Pinsett Masons

Maintanance of bowling green
-vegetation cutbacks
Footpath clearance, removing
an old fence.

8.6

Aire Valley Homes

Total

7.1

8.6
7.7
7.9
8.6
84.4

Table 3 - Educational work within the South Inner area:
Site

School

Middleton St. Mary's Primary
Park
Westwood Primary
St. Mary's Primary

Activity
Miinbeasts and habitats
Wildflower meadow creation
Pond Dipping, Wildlife Walk

Page 42

No Of
Children
30
31
30

Site

School

Activity

St. Mary's Primary
Westwood Primary
Westwood Primary

Minibeasts and habitats
Minibeasts and habitats
Parks for People Slide Talk (to
assembly)
Parks for People Slide Talk (to
assembly)

Middleton St Mary's CoE
Voluntary Controlled
Primary School
Middleton Primary
School
St Philip's Catholic
Primary and Nursery
School
St Philip's Catholic
Primary and Nursery
School
Hunslet Moor Primary
School
Windmill Primary School
Windmill Primary School
Greenmount Primary
School
Hunslet Carr Primary
School
Cross Flatts Primary
School
Hunslet Carr Primary
School
Various Local Schools
Various Local Schools
Middleton St Mary's CoE
Voluntary Controlled
Primary School
Ingham Road Primary

No Of
Children
28
30
200
200

Parks for People Slide Talk (to
assembly)
Parks for People Slide Talk (to
assembly)

200

Parks for People Slide Talk
(single class)

20

Parks for People Slide Talk (to
assembly)
Balsam Bash, local history walk
& talk, Habitats
Parks for People Slide Talk (to
assembly)
Parks for People Slide Talk (to
assembly)
Parks for People Slide Talk (to
assembly)
Parks for People Slide Talk (to
assembly)
Wildlife study
Pond dipping, Woodland
Habitat study
Pond dipping, Woodland
Habitat study
Seed gathering

200

200
30
200
400
100
50
120
200
200
60

Seed gathering

60

Table 4 - Summary of the groups who are active in the South Inner area :
Number of
Volunteers
5
20
5
5
30
5
4
6
12
92

Group Name
Friends of Beeston Cemetery
Friends of Cross Flatts Park
Friends Of Holbeck Cemetery
Friends of Hunslet Cemetery
Friends of Middleton Park
Friends of New Forest Plantation
Leeds Parks Volunteers
Leeds Voluntary Footpath Rangers
Leeds Wildlife Volunteers
Total

Page 43

Estimated
Volunteer Days
5
120
5
10
180
10
78
130
216
754

Table 5 - Existing in bloom groups within the South Inner area;
In Bloom
Number of Award Won
Estimated
Volunteer Days
Group
Volunteers
Beeston
Belle Isle
Cottingley
Coupland Road
Holbeck
Middleton

10
4
10
15
12
24

Urban Community – Silver Gilt

Urban Community – Silver

Total

200
100
200
280
240
480

1500

Highlighted group is newly formed in bloom group in 2012

Events
3.4

The bookings and licensing team has introduced improvements to the application
process for events that occur on parks. They are providing greater assistance in
helping community groups organise events with particular emphasise on ensuring
legal and safety requirements are met but do not deter groups and organisations
from organising activities. The table below shows a list of events held in the inner
south area in 2012:
Site Name
Cottingley Hall Cem &
Crem
Cottingley Recreation
Ground
Cross Flatts Park
Grove Road
Recreation (Hunslet)

Month

Event

April

Ben Hepworth - Filming

July
June

Family Fun Day - Church Together
Beeston Festival

June

Hunslet Festival
(16th - 23rd) Funfair (Waddington)
Mini Olympics
Leeds Play Network Funday
City Evangelical Church BBQ
Holbeck Gala
Family Fun Day - Church Together
(17th - 24th) Funfair (Waddington)
(24th - 1st) Funfair (Waddington)
Homeless Charity Event - Start

July
August

Holbeck Moor

Hunslet Moor
Merrion Street
Garden

July
August
September
September
July
September

Middleton Park

January
May
June

Homeless Charity Event - Finish
Airienteers
Cadet Run
Heritage Day
School Day
Circus Skills ( FOMP)
LCC Sports Day
Middleton railway ( FOMP)
Shakespeare in the park ( FOMP)

Page 44

Total
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

Site Name

Month

February
May
June
July
December

Summer Bands
Wildlife photography (FOMP)
Archaeology Walk
Leeds Play Network Sessions
Summer Bands
Yorkshire Day ( FOMP)
Circus Skills ( FOMP)
Leeds Play Network Sessions
Summer Bands
Wednesday in the Woods
Produce Show (FOMP)
Friends of New Forest Village
Schools Athlectic Ass
Airienteers
Middleton Park Bonfire
Schools Athlectic Ass
Fairplay Sport 10k Run
PECO X Country
Pancake Race
Static Bike Ride
Static Bike Ride
Ben Hepworth - Filming
Carols in the Park

June

(11th - 18th) Funfair (International)

July

August

September
October
November

December

Park Square

Throstle Recreation
Ground
Total

Event

Total
1
1
1
3
1
1
1
9
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
56

Community Parks – Leeds Quality Park Status
3.5

The Parks and Green Space Strategy was approved at Executive Board in
February 2009 and sets out the vision and priorities to 2020. One of the key
proposals contained in the strategy is the aspiration for all community parks to meet
the Green Flag standard for field based assessment by 2020. The Green Flag
Award Scheme represents the national standard for parks and green spaces. It has
been developed around eight key criteria as follows;
•

A welcoming place - how to create a sense that people are positively
welcomed in the park

•

Healthy, safe & secure - how best to ensure that the park is a safe & healthy
environment for all users

•

Clean & well maintained - what people can expect in terms of cleanliness,
facilities & maintenance

•

Sustainability - how a park can be managed in environmentally sensitive ways

•

Conservation & heritage - the value of conservation & care of historical
heritage

Page 45

•

Community involvement - ways of encouraging community participation and
acknowledging the community's role in a park's success

•

Marketing - methods of promoting a park successfully

•

Management - how to reflect all of the above in a coherent & accessible
management plan or strategy and ensure it is implemented.

3.6
•

The percentage of Parks and Countryside sites assessed that meet the Green
Flag standard.

•

The percentage of Parks and Countryside community parks which meet the
Green Flag standard. Performance against these indicators is illustrated in
section 3.32.

Cross Flatts Park
Holbeck Moor
Hunslet Lake
Hunslet Moor
Penny Pocket Park

Meets Standard?

Marketing

Community
Involvement

Conservation /
Heritage

Sustainability

Clean, Well
Maintained

Healthy, Safe,
Secure

Site

Welcoming Place

The indicator includes an assessment of each community park which has particular
relevance to Area Committee engagement. The scheme is known as the Leeds
Quality Park (LQP) standard. The following table provides a summary of these
assessments for the South Inner Area Committee.

Year Assessed

3.7

The Parks and Countryside service reports annual performance against two local
indicators based upon the Green Flag Award scheme;

Yes
No
No
No
No

2010
2012
2010
2012
2011

Key:
Meets Leeds Quality Park Standard on average for this key criteria
Below Leeds Quality Park Standard on average for this key criteria

3.8

From this table, there is 1 park identified that meet the Leeds Quality Park Standard
in the area, with 4 not reaching the standard. This is identical to the previous Area
Committee report.

3.9

The residents survey in 2009 enables an assessment of visitor numbers and
satisfaction rating (scored out of 10) for a number of criteria for each park, set out in
the following table:

Page 46

Overall Impression

Sports Facilities

Facilities for Families

Nature Conservation

Horticultural Maintenance

Range of Facilities

Ease to Get Around

Cleanliness and Maintenance

Design and Appearance

Site

6.7
7.0
6.6
7.9
5.5
7.5
6.8
6.1
6.5
7.6
7.8
6.4
9.2
6.0
8.2
7.7
6.8
7.8
3.6
3.2
3.2
7.2
3.5
4.8
4.4
4.0
4.0
Note – Penny Pocket Park and Hunslet Lake had insufficient responses to be able to accurately produce
satisfaction data
Cross Flatts Park
Holbeck Moor
Hunslet Moor

Key:
Generally meets LQP expectations
Generally below LQP expectations

7.0 - 10
0.0 – 6.9

This table broadly correlates with the professional audit undertaken for the Leeds
Quality Parks assessment set out in paragraph 3.11. In particular scores and visitor
numbers are higher for the parks that meet the LQP standard. There are however
issues identified with the range of facilities offered in many of the parks and sports
facilities.
Playing Pitches
The residents survey in 2009 allowed respondents to rate sport facilities in parks.
The results are shown in the table below;

3.10

2009 (South
Inner)
67.6%
32.4%

Rating of Sports facilities
Fair to very good
Poor or very poor

2006 (South
Inner)
64.4%
35.6%

The results show a decrease in those who felt sports facilities were of at least fair
standard. This data is related to the table set out in paragraph 3.13.
Fixed Play
The residents survey in 2009 allowed respondents to rate facilities for children and
their parents. The results are shown in the table below;

3.11

2009 (South
Inner)
49.7%
56.5%

Rating facilities for children
Fair to very good
Poor or very poor

2006 (South
Inner)
50.3%
43.5%

Results show little change in those who rated facilities as fair or better.
3.12

The following play areas have been refurbished during 2012;
•

Holbeck Moor – Relocation of skateboard Park (£31k)

Page 47

•
3.13

Pepper Road Recreation Ground – New skateboard park & play equipment
(£129k)
Improvements to sports pitches in South Inner during 2012 were:

•

3.14

Middleton Leisure Centre Pitches – Development of 3 senior and 1 junior
football pitch, with drainage works and pitch perimeter fencing. Team changing
facilities. A full size floodlit 3G pitch and refurbishment of a MUGA.
The following table provides a perspective on the minimum level of investment
required to achieve the LQP standard for the four remaining parks. It also includes
the level of reinvestment required across all the community parks in order to sustain
the LQP pass up to 2020;

Site Name
Holbeck Moor
Hunslet Lake
Hunslet Moor
Penny Pocket Park

Cost to Achieve

Reinvestment

(excluding fixed play)

(excluding fixed play)

£14,800
£73,500
£66,073
£5,450

Total to achieve LQP

£159,823
£10,228
£81,828
£241,651

Average annual reinvestment
Total reinvestment to 2020
Overall Total Investment to 2020

3.15

Reinvestment levels are estimated according to the expected lifespan of equipment
and infrastructure as set out below;
Description
Signage and interpretation
Fixed play (including MUGA’s/skate parks)
Bins and benches
Paths and infrastructure
Landscaping

3.16

Planned improvements for the next 12 months are;
•

3.17

Timescale for Recurring
Investment
5 years
10 years
15 years
25 years
25 years

Cross Flatts Park – New play equipment (£50k).
In terms of fixed play, work has been undertaken to set out refurbishment
requirements over a 10 year rolling programme in support of the outcomes of the
Fixed Play Strategy. The average cost of a new playground is currently about
£120k; Multi-use games areas and skateparks are slightly cheaper on average at
about £90k each. The table below shows the capital investment required on an
ongoing basis to fund the area committees existing fixed play sites;

Fixed Play Type
Play Areas
Multi Use games Areas

No.
16
4

Total Replacement Required Average
Cost £’s
Annual Spend £’s
1,920,000
192,000
360,000
36,000

Page 48

Skate Parks
Totals

3

270,000
2,550,000

27,000
255,000

Area Committee funding for additional on site gardeners
3.18

A number of area committees provide additional funding for gardeners to increase
site based presence at parks in the area.

3.19

Analysis shows that complaints to both Ward Councillors and the Parks and
Countryside Service have declined on sites with increased daily presence. In
addition, the service has observed an increase in the number of residents using
parks and open spaces which is backed up by the residents survey data.

3.20

The site based gardeners increase working relationships with users, local residents
and community groups. These site based staff further increase users satisfaction
and support the aspiration to increase volunteer groups working within parks.
Streetscene Grounds Maintenance

3.21

Following a procurement exercise the streetscene grounds maintenance contract
was awarded to Continental Landscapes Ltd (CLL) with effect from 1st January
2012. This contract covers sites that are located alongside the highway network or
amongst residential streets managed by the council’s Arms Length Management
Organisations (ALMOs and BITMO). The specification requires the contractor to
undertake litter removal from sites they maintain at each visit supporting the
council’s wider efforts to maintain clean streets. The table below shows the asset
breakdown of contract items for the South Inner area committee:
Asset Type
Amenity Grass
Premium Grass
Rough Grass
Primary Network
Shrub Beds
Hedges
Rose Beds
Total

3.22

Annual Visits
13
26
3
6
2
3
2

Unit
M2
M2
M2
M2
M2
M
M2

Measure
840,295
46,911
10,977
92,447
52,727
884
971
1,045,212

Despite 2012 being one of the wettest summers ever recorded the contractor has
completed grass cutting operations as required by the contract specification. During
June the specification was revised to increase the mowing frequency on grass plots
adjacent to sheltered housing and this has proven to be very successful in
addressing issues of grass length and overspill of cuttings in these areas. Regular
monitoring of the contractors work is undertaken with a target sample size of 10%.
Analysis of city wide performance for the 2012 mowing season shows that the
contractor achieved an average failure rate of less than 1%.

Page 49

3.23

The Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board Working Group examined the
contract during the summer and produced a number of recommendations that are
currently being considered or have already been introduced. These include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Increasing frequencies to 16 grass cuts and 6 shrub/rose visits.
That any proposed removal of shrub/rose beds are consulted on with ward
members and parish/town councils prior to removal.
That options to increase ‘joined up working’ with locality management are
explored.
To examine options to increase efficiencies by better utilisation of
contractor resources during the winter.
That parish and town councils are encouraged to engage in contract
performance management.
That an improved communications strategy is developed.
That area committees are provided with performance information relevant
to the area.
That contract management efficiencies are sought alongside increased
consistency of approach.
Establishing funding to address problem sites until ownership can be
established.

3.24

From 1st September 2012 management of the contract passed to Parks and
Countryside and work has commenced to restructure the contract team to achieve
increased coordination and efficiency from grounds maintenance and weed
spraying contracts. It is proposed that officers attending the area committee
environment sub groups will provide regular updates on performance and any
proposed changes to the contract.

3.25

As a result of the ALMO review currently underway, arrangements regarding the
provision of ALMO elements of the contract may change.
Coordinated Working with Environmental Services

3.26

The Parks & Countryside Service move to the Environments & Neighbourhoods
Directorate has given opportunities to improve collaborative working. In particular
improvements in horticultural land management, cleansing and more efficient use of
resources in regard to;
•
•
•

•

Co-ordination of weed spraying activities with the grounds maintenance
contract with a consistent approach to monitoring.
Traffic Management arrangements co-ordinated to minimise costs and
disruption of the highway.
Litter collection in the vicinity of community parks, and as part of normal
operations site based gardeners undertake an initial litter pick of the park
which is being expanded to include some areas outside the curtiledge of
the park. Conversely, street cleansing staff now assist with emptying litter
bins in parks on a weekend when parks staff are not always present.
Work is underway to map all maintainable ginnels and establish work
requirements to draw up an annual co-ordinated work schedule. Work is
already co-ordinated to undertake weed-spraying where the locality team

Page 50

•
•

3.27

have already cut back vegetation, and removed detritus from the surface of
the path.
Locality Managers have led on consultation and worked with Parks and
Countryside on developing proposals around dog control orders in Leeds.
The Parks and Countryside service has a number of welfare facilities and
yard space available in most community parks distributed throughout the
city which has provided an opportunity for the locality based teams to use
these facilities for staff welfare provision and as operational bases.

Specific coordinated working relevant to the South Inner Area Committee has
occurred at;
•

Cross Flatts Park - Parks and Countryside to include the emptying of the
bin on the entrance to Maud Avenue and include the highways bins on
other entrance to the park. Environment to litter pick the perimeter of the
park and empty bins in the park close to the entrances at the weekend.

•

Hunslet Moor - Facility sharing with street cleansing teams. This allows
the cleansing staff to operate more efficiently in terms of productive time
and transport savings.

Parks & Countryside Key Performance Indicators
3.28

The following table highlights key performance indicators relevant to the service;
PI Code

Description

LKI-GFI /
CP-PC50
/ EM38

The percentage of parks
and countryside sites
assessed internally that
meet the Green Flag criteria
Overall user satisfaction
with Parks and Countryside
(from the user survey)
The percentage of parks
and countryside community
parks which meet LQP
status

LKI-PCP
22
New

4

Corporate Considerations

4.1

Consultation and Engagement

2010/11
Actual
23%

2011/12
Actual
26.2%

(Target
23%)

(Target
26.2%)

N/A

N/A

2012/13
Target
29.4%

2013/14
Target
32.6%

7/10

N/A

47.5%

55%

38.7%
33.9%

Target
(40%)

4.1.1 Close liaison with community and ward members is already in existence, utilising a
variety of mechanisms, for example through residents’ surveys, multi-agency
meetings and community forums. In addition volunteers, Friends of groups and local
residents are regularly consulted on local projects with input on design and physical
implementation of a wide range of site improvements.

Page 51

4.2

Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration

4.2.1 This report does not have an impact on equality and diversity. Further information
is available on analysis of the residents survey 2009 specifically regarding equality
issues on request.
4.3

Council Policies and City Priorities

4.3.1 The contents of this report set out how the Executive Board requirements can be
met by taking a more proactive approach to involve and engage Area Committees
in matters relating to community parks.
4.3.2 The information within the report contributes significantly to the sustainable
economy and culture city priority plan.
4.4

Resources and Value for Money

4.4.1 The central government’s Comprehensive Spending Review has had significant
impact on local government budgets and it is anticipated that the budget allocation
for Parks and Countryside will continue to be very challenging.
4.4.2 The service undertakes to sustain and develop the services provided to the public
and has traditionally used a number of sources of financial support to achieve
developments. These include grants from bodies such as Green Leeds Ltd,
Sustrans, Natural England, National Lottery funding and developer contributions via
section 106 (S106) funds.
4.5

Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In

4.5.1 This report has no legal implications and is not subject to call in. There is no
information which is confidential or exempt.
4.6

Risk Management

4.6.1 There are no significant risk management issues contained within the report, its
conclusions and recommendations.
5

Conclusions

5.1

Community green space contributes in many ways to the delivery of the Corporate
Priority Plan. They provide places for relaxation, escape, exercise and recreation.
They bring communities together and make a positive contribution to the local
economy, education, improve public health and well-being, and generally make a
better place to live, work and visit.

5.2

Improvements to community parks, fixed play and playing pitches remain a priority,
and there already has been investment made to deliver improvements along with
further schemes identified. Issues are being addressed through the Parks and
Green Space Strategy along with implementation of the Fixed Play Strategy and
Playing Pitch Strategy.

Page 52

5.3

Community engagement remains a key activity for the service with regular
correspondence, attendance at meetings and briefings, along with more localised
consultation where required. As described at 3.2 options to undertake additional
surveys during 2013 are currently being examined to provide an updated dataset for
usage and satisfaction.

5.4

A programme of activities is planned for which updates and reports can be provided
to the Area Committee to help inform, consult and influence community green
space management.

6

Recommendations

6.1

The Area Committee is requested to note the content of the report and to
communicate priorities for investment in community parks, playing pitches and fixed
play facilities in light of the issues raised.
Background documents
There are no background papers associated with this report

Page 53

Appendix 1: Detailed Residents Survey Information
1.1

Total Number of Annual Visits

South Inner

Other P&C Sites

Total

1,691,392

2,363,230

4,054,622

Reason

Holbeck
Moor %

Hunslet
Moor %

South
Inner
Total %

Reasons for Visiting – respondents select their five main reasons (The 24
choices have been grouped in this table)
Cross
Flatts
Park %

1.2

Community Parks

Exercise

86

85

67

84

Play

55

46

83

55

Dog walking

12

31

17

17

Enjoy the surroundings

28

15

17

24

Family outings

29

15

33

27

Relaxation

86

77

67

84

See Wildlife

11

23

0

11

Sport related

14

23

33

16

Other

20

0

0

15

Events

38

15

0

31

1.3

Age Profile of Visitors

Site

Age 20 – 39

Age 40 – 59

Age 60+

Cross Flatts Park

31%

46%

22%

Holbeck Moor

31%

31%

38%

Hunslet Moor

33%

17%

50%

South Inner Total

32%

41%

27%

Page 54

How visitors get to the parks and how long it takes to get there
1.4

Visitors on Foot – Journey Time
% of
Less
visitors
than 10
Site
on foot
mins

10–20
mins

20-30
mins

30+ mins

Cross Flatts Park

92%

65%

34%

1%

0%

Holbeck Moor

90%

77%

23%

0%

0%

Hunslet Moor

80%

75%

25%

0%

0%

South Inner Total

91%

68%

31%

1%

0%

1.5

Visitors by Car - Journey Time
% of visitors Less than
by car
10 mins

Site

10–20 mins

20-30 mins

Cross Flatts Park

5%

100%

0%

0%

Holbeck Moor

10%

0%

100%

0%

Hunslet Moor

0%

~

~

~

South Inner Total

5%

75%

25%

0%

1.6

How long do visitors stay. (Detailed information on each community park is
available on request).
Summer Stay
Winter Stay

Time

Weekend

Weekday

Weekend

Weekday

Less than 30 Minutes

14%

24%

31%

57%

30 minutes to 1 hour

32%

41%

45%

25%

1 to 2 hours

32%

24%

10%

6%

2 to 4 hours

18%

6%

2%

0%

4 or more hours

4%

2%

0%

0%

Do not visit

0%

4%

12%

12%

Page 55

1.7

How often do visitors go. (Detailed information on each community park is
available on request).
Summer

Winter

Every Day

26%

13%

Most Days

32%

23%

Once or Twice a week

23%

21%

Once every two weeks

9%

8%

Once a month

11%

23%

Seldom or never

0%

13%

1.8
Information taken from comments made in the survey.
Site
General satisfaction What would make you
comments
stay longer or
encourage more use
Cross Flatts Park

Broken glass is an
issue at times.

Improved feeling of safety
within the park.

Dog fouling and control
of dogs is a significant
issue for people.

Catering facility of some
kind.

Any other
comments
Several people
comment on
improvements
seen over recent
years.

More events.
Some are impressed
with the number of
facilities others
want/think there should
be more.
Holbeck Moor

Hunslet Moor

Improvements to
football pitches.

Litter/broken glass
reduction.

Improved play area.

Reduction in vandalism.
More seating – which faces
into the park.
Bowling green access,
members keep it locked.
Better play area.

Page 56

Removal of
boundary hedge
has reduced
wildlife.
~

Agenda Item 11
Report author: Gavin Forster
Tel: 74310
Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and Improvement)
Report to South Leeds (Inner) Area Committee
Date: Wednesday 13th February 2013
Subject: Wellbeing Report
Are specific electoral Wards affected?

Yes

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

No

Beeston &
Holbeck
City &
Hunslet
Middleton
Park

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and
integration?

Yes

No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary of main issues
This report seeks to provide Members with:
1. Confirmation of the 2012/13 revenue allocation and the 2011/12 carry forward figure.
2. An update on both the revenue and capital elements of the Well being budget.
3. Details of revenue funding for consideration and approval
4. Details of revenue projects agreed to date (Appendix 1)
5. Members are also asked to note the current position of the Small Grants Budget
Recommendations
Members of the Inner South Area Committee are requested to:
a) Note the contents of the report.
b) Note the position of the Well being Budget as set out at 3.0.
c) Consider and make decisions on the proposals set out at 3.3
d) Note the Well being revenue projects already agreed as listed in Appendix 1.
e) Consider the project proposals detailed in 4.0
f) Note the Small Grants situation in 5.0

Page 57

1.0

Purpose of this report
This report seeks to provide:

1.1

Confirmation of the 2012/13 revenue allocation and the 2011/12 carry forward figure.

1.2

An update on both the revenue and capital elements of the Well being budget.

1.3

Details of revenue funding for consideration and approval

1.4

Details of revenue projects agreed to date (Appendix 1)

1.5

Members are also asked to note the current position of the Small Grants Budget

2.0

Background information

2.1

Each Area Committee has been allocated a Well being Budget which it is responsible for
administering. The aim of this budget is to support the social, economic and
environmental well being of the area by using the funding to support projects that
contribute towards the delivery of local priorities.

2.2

Well being funding cannot be paid retrospectively. An application form must be submitted
and approved by the Area Committee before activities or items being purchased through
Well being funding are completed or purchased.

2.3

Members are reminded that due to the timescales required for submission to Area
Committee the deadline for receipt of completed documentation is at least five weeks
before an Area Committee to allow for processing the necessary paperwork.

3.0

Well being Budget Position
Members should note the following points: -

3.1

Revenue funding available for 2012/13

3.1.1 The revenue budget approved by Executive Board for 2012/13 is £224,520.00.
3.3.4 Appendix 1 shows the projects funded by the Area Committee up to and including the
May meeting. The carry forward figure for 2012/13 is £219,337.41.
3.1.3 Therefore the total amount of revenue funding available to the Area Committee for
2012/13 is £ 443,857.41.
3.2

Revenue funding 2012/13

3.3

Environmental Sub-group

3.3.1 Members are reminded that at the start of the financial year a ring fence of £3,000 was
allocated to the support of the implementation of SLA2.

Page 58

3.3.2 After discussions between the members of the sub-group, the Area Committee is
presented with the recommendations from the Environmental sub-group:
Project
The purchase of six new
surveillance cameras for use in
fly-tipping enforcement work – to
deter environmental crime
and/or catch environmental
criminals..
Weekend patrols to deter
littering and dog fouling in
priority areas. The patrols are to
be carried out by two staff on six
consecutive Saturdays from mid
February to the end of March
2013..

Cost breakdown
The cameras cost £250
each, this project will
purchase six.

Total Costs
£1,500

Standard overtime rates
are £20.34 per hour, this
project will cover the costs
for two officers to patrol for
six hours on six days

£1,465.20

Total Costs

£2965.20

3.3.3 Members are asked to support these recommendations to allow delivery before the end
of the financial year.
3.4

Budget Summary 2012/13
All of the following information does not take in to account the recommendations outlined
previously in this report but if approved these figure will be amended accordingly.

Project

Total

B&H

C&H

MP

Allocated Budget 2012/13
Carry Forward
variations
Available Budget

£224,520.00

£74,840.00

£74,840.00

£74,840.00

£219,337.41
-£760.41
£443,097.00

£90,342.80

Projects carried forward form
2011/12
Available budget for 2012/13

£113,368.54

£83,654.36
-£162.91
£158,331.4
5
£39,866.51

£165,182.8
0
£39,544.49

£45,340.25
-£597.50
£119,582.7
5
£33,957.54

£329,728.46

£118,464.9
4

£125,638.3
1

£85,625.21

£5,167.00
£700.00
£1,972.06
£17,000.00
£3,000.00
£22,176.00
£50,658.59
£2,881.00

£2,767.00
£233.33
£722.56
£5,500.00
£1,000.00
£7,392.00
£19,791.63
£483.33

£1,775.00
£233.34
£531.75
£5,500.00
£1,000.00
£7,392.00
£18,283.63
£317.67

£625.00
£233.33
£717.76
£6,000.00
£1,000.00
£7,392.00
£12,583.34
£2,080.00

Small grants
Skips
Communications budget
Festivals 2013
Environmental Budget
Community Safety Budget
Children & Young People Budget
Festivals 2012 (additional funding)

Page 59

South Leeds Superstars
South Leeds Life
Marlborough Green Roofs
Hunslet Library
Priority Neighbourhood Worker
Middleton & Belle Isle Christmas
Lights
Middleton Gala
Cottingley NIP
Hamara – Enhance learning &
employment
Market place events
Atha Street Bollards
Middleton Park Bins
Children & Young Peoples projects
2013/14 (commitment from
2012/13)

£9,329.00
£9,000.00
£5,995.00
£1,300.00
£13,601.58
£2,230.00

£3,000.00
£790.00
£7,000.00
£87,694.40

Celebration event
2012/13 projects approved
Total remaining balance 2012/13
3.5

£3,879.23
£3,000.00
£12,370.00

£2,943.00
£3,000.00

£3,610.00
£3,000.00
£5,995.00
£1,300.00

£2,776.00
£3,000.00

£13,601.58
£2,230.00
£3,879.23
£3,000.00
£12,370.00
£1,000.00
£790.00

£1,000.00

£1,000.00

£25,907.18

£27,012.00

£7,000.00
£34,775.22

£1,000

£333.33

£333.34

£333.33

£263,743.86
£65,984.60

£88,464.94
£30,000.00

£89,653.73
£35,984.58

£85,625.21
£0.00

Capital funding available for 2010/11

3.5.1 Of the £700,000 capital funding allocated to the Area Committee for 2004/10 a total of
£700,300 has been committed to date leaving an overspend of £300
3.5.2 Members are asked to note the capital allocation by Ward. The spend broken down by
Ward is as follows:

Total Allocation
2004-11
Allocation to
date
Balance

Beeston &
Holbeck
£233,333.33

City & Hunslet

Middleton Park

£ 233,333.33

£ 233,333.34

£230,951.99

£232,120.28

£240,551.42

£2,381.34

£1,213.03

0.00

3.5.3 Members are asked to note that as the capital expenditure report (Appendix 2 in previous
reports) has not changed significantly of late, therefore it will not be included as part of
this report going forward. Copies of the document are available on request.
4

Wellbeing Projects for approval

Page 60

4.1

It is possible that some of the projects in Appendix 1 may not use their allocated spend.
This could be for several reasons including the project no longer going ahead, the project
not taking place within the dates specified in the funding agreement or failure to submit
monitoring reports. Due to this the final revenue balance may be greater than the amount
specified in 3.2.4.

4.2

Members are asked to note that the deadline for receipt of completed application forms is
seven weeks before an Area Committee to allow officers to appropriately scrutinise
schemes and confirm that they adequately meet the priorities set out as part of the Area
Committee Business plan. This scrutiny may involve discussion at appropriate working
groups and with relevant partner agencies to make sure that the projects presented to
Members have all of the necessary information to allow decisions to be made.

4.3

Members are asked to consider the following projects:

4.4

Project Summary: Cross Flatts Park – Playground Improvements
Name of Group or Organisation: Parks & Countryside
Total Project Cost: £50,000
Amount proposed from Well Being Budget 2012/2013: £50,000 (£25,000 per ward for
Beeston & Holbeck and City & Hunslet)
Wards Covered: Beeston & Holbeck and City & Hunslet
Members have requested the development of a scheme to improve the play area in
Cross Flatts Park. A number of options are being discussed with officers to make sure
that the equipment suggested is age appropriate and long lasting. Consultation will be
carried out with local children to confirm the most appropriate equipment to be installed.
The exact details is proposed to be discussed directly with local Ward Councillors.
Area Committee/Area Business Plan Key Themes and Action Plan Priorities: These
proposals supports the Area Committee priority “Residents in Inner South have access to
opportunities to become involved in sport and culture

4.5

Project Summary: Cross Flatts Park – Millennium Garden Improvements
Name of Group or Organisation: Parks & Countryside
Total Project Cost: £10,000
Amount proposed from Well Being Budget 2012/2013: £10,000 (£5,000 per ward for
Beeston & Holbeck and City & Hunslet)
Wards Covered: Beeston & Holbeck and City & Hunslet
Members have requested the development of a scheme to improve the hard standing
area at the rose garden in Cross Flatts Park. This improvement would have a positive
impact on the park, and link with the proposed improvements to the Watsonia Pavilion
which are being led by the Friends of Cross Flatts Park.
Area Committee/Area Business Plan Key Themes and Action Plan Priorities: These
proposals supports the Area Committee priority “Residents in Inner South have access to
opportunities to become involved in sport and culture

5.0

Small Grants Approvals

Page 61

5.1

Members will recall that at the January Area Committee agreed that no additional small
grants / skips be approved this financial year to facilitate the commissioning of Children &
Young People’s projects. However, due to the timing of the meeting there were two small
grants still being processed which now require consideration.

5.2

Small grants in question:
Holbeck Gala

Application for
computer equipment

Middleton Community
group

Running costs

£900
(as
the
scheme covers both
B&H and C& H)
£500 MP ward

5.3

Summaries of each of these schemes are attached as Appendix 2.

5.3

Groups making applications since the January Area Committee will be asked to complete
documentation for processing and in line with the current process Members will be asked
for their views. If supported by Members then the groups will be informed that the
application will lay pending the new financial year. That way no group will feel
disadvantaged or disappointed.

6.0

Corporate Considerations

6.1

Consultation and Engagement

6.1.1 Projects are developed to address priorities in the Area Committee Business Plan. The
production of this plan is informed by Local Councillors and local residents. All projects
developed are in consultation with Elected Members and local communities. Approval for
any contribution from the Well being budget is secured at Area Committee.
6.2

Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration

6.2.1 Community groups submitting a project proposal requesting funding from the Well being
budget have an equal opportunities policy and as part of the application process,
complete a section outlining which equality groups the project will work with and how
equality and cohesion issues have been considered.
6.2.2 Internal and statutory partners are committed to equality and cohesion and all projects
they are involved with will have considered these issues.
6.2.3 A light touch Equality Impact Assessments is carried out for all projects.
6.3

Council Policies and City Priorities

6.3.1 The projects outlined in this report contribute to target and priorities set out in the
following council policies:
•

Vision for Leeds

•

Children and Young Peoples Plan

Page 62

6.4

•

Health and Well being City Priority Plan

•

Safer and Stronger Communities Plan

•

Regeneration City Priority Plan
Resources and Value for Money

6.4.1 Resource implications will be that the remaining balance of the Well being Budget for
capital will be reduced as a result of any projects funded.
6.5

Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In

6.5.1 All decisions taken by the Area Committee in relation to the delegated functions from
Executive Board are not eligible for Call In.
6.5.2 There are no key or major decisions being made that would be eligible for Call In.
6.5.3 There are no legal implications as a result of this report.
6.6

Risk Management

6.6.1 This report provides an update on work in the Inner South and therefore no risks are
identifiable. Any projects funded through Well being budget complete a section
identifying risks and solutions as part of the application process.
7.0

Conclusions

7.1

The report provides up to date information on the Area Committee’s Well being
Budget.

8.0

Recommendations

8.1

Members of the Inner South Area Committee are requested to:
a) Note the contents of the report.
b) Note the position of the Well being Budget as set out at 3.0.
c) Consider the points raised under the ring fencing arrangements in 3.3
d) Note the Well being revenue projects already agreed as listed in Appendix 1.
e) Consider the project proposals detailed in 4.0
f) Note the Small Grants situation in 5.0
Background Documents1
There are no background documents associated with this report

1

The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four years
following the date of the relevant meeting. Accordingly this list does not include documents containing exempt or
confidential information, or any published works. Requests to inspect any background documents should be
submitted to the report author.

Page 63

Page 64

TOTAL

IS-11-02 Youth Services - Youth Activities
IS-11-08 Aspire to Succeed
IS-11-13 Leeds Festival 12/13
IS-11-28 Cottingley Sphinx
IS-11-32 Hunslet Club
IS-11-33 MEA Outreach worker 2012/13
IS-10-13 HW Middleton Ederley Care

Projects rolled forward from 2011/12

TOTAL

IS-11-17bCommunity Safety
IS-11-29 South Leeds Youth Theatre
IS-11-31 SLATE
IS-11-34 St Lukes Cares 2012/13

IS-11-06 Cottinghley Health and Wellbeing

Allocation

377.00

£

£

TOTAL

£

£

66,085.76 £

3,139.50
14,150.50

£
£

£

4,995.00

2,565.06
3,400.00
2,017.22
2,000.00
30,980.00
2,838.48

£

£
£
£
£
£
£

8,939.41 £

Committed

£

47,194.00

6800
2,025.00
£14,150.50

518.38

3135.52
192.50

14982.78

5389.32

Paid

27,751.06

1,250.00
£2,250.00
£1,955.38

£

2,250.00
162.91
5,000.00
1,500.00

£
£
£
£

13,312.00
6,669.10

£1,312.56
£1,002.02

Paid

160,658.84

1260.87

1,066.52

162.91

B&H
74,840.00
83,654.36

£
£

26.50

£

£

£

Committed

445,801.39

1,260.87

1,066.52

£

£

£
£

162.91 -£

2012 / 2013
224,520.00
219,337.41
597.50

Leeds Superstars - Remaining
Balance
Middleton Craft, Flower & Produce
Show

-£

Cottingley Health & Wellbeing Remaining Balance

£
£
-£

kidz club remaining balance

middleton elderley

Projects rolled forward from 2011/12 (Accurals)

Budget

Appendix 1

IS-09-43 Women Health Matters
IS-10-12 Environmental Planters
at St Matthews
IS-11-01 St Lukes Cares
IS-11-03 work in Middleton
IS-11-04 Middleton Elderley Aid
- Outreach Worker
Leeds Ahead - job search support IS-11-07
Kidz Klub IS-11-10
Community Safety IS-11-17a
Friday Night Project IS-11-30

Page 65

£

£
£

165,182.80

C&H
74,840.00
90,342.80

£
£

518.38

£39,778.49

2,497.50
£2,092.31
£2,373.50
£9,282.00

£

£39,544.49

£2,497.50
£3,923.07
£1,396.00
£10,868.00

10,326.67

C&H
£3,899.25
£1,134.00
£
5,500.00

B&H

119,959.75

377.00

MP
74,840.00
45,340.25
597.50

£4,055.13
£1,133.00
£
5,500.00
£
2,000.00
£ 10,326.67

£

£

£
£
-£

£33,956.78

£784.62
£1,395.00
£8,151.00

£ 10,326.66
£ 5,974.00
£
192.50

£1,133.00
£
6,000.00

MP

Inner South Wellbeing Budget
2010 - 2012

Project

Appendix 1

To support environmental initiatives to target issues

Environmental budget

Funding to suppor the community festivals in 2012

Festivals 2012/13

A budget to enable effective communication and
consultation on Area Committee issues in the Outer
South.

Communications Budget

To provide skips for community use.

Skips

Provision of a small grants fund for small scale
community based projects meeting Area Delivery
Plan priorities.

Small Grants

2010/11 Rolled forward projects

Friends of Middleton Park

£

£

Bands in the Park / Dog Show (additional fundingFriends of Cross Flatts Park

Middleton Craft, Flower and Produce
show (additional funding)

£

Holbeck Gala (additional funding)

£

Groundwork Leeds

Marlborough Green Roof Projects

£

£

Health For All

South Leeds Life Magazine

Hunslet Library - additional items

£

Tiger 11

Superstars - Tiger 11

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

Inner South Children & Young £
People's Sub-group

South East Area Support
Team

South East Area Support
Team

South East Area Support
Team

South East Area Support
Team

South East Area Support
Team

South East Area Support
Team

South East Area Support
Team

Delivery Organisation

Children and Young People Sub Group

To support NPT to deliver community safety
initiatives

Community Safety Budget

Page 66

2,080.00

300.00 £

500.00 £

1,300.00

5,995.00

9,000.00 £

9,373.00 £

50,658.60 £

22,176.00 £

3,000.00 £

17,000.00 £

1,972.07 £

700.00 £

5,167.00 £

113,279.76

Approved

£

150.00

333.33

3,000.00

2,958.00

19,791.63

7,392.00

1,000.00

5,500.00

722.56

233.33

£

150.00

166.67

1,300.00

£

£

5,995.00

3,000.00

3,624.00

18,283.63

7,392.00

1,000.00

5,500.00

531.75

233.34

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

1,775.00

£39,544.49

£39,778.49

2,767.00

C&H

B&H

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

2,080.00

3,000.00

2,791.00

12,583.34

7,392.00

1,000.00

6,000.00

717.76

233.33

625.00

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

£33,956.78 £

MP

2012/2013 Revenue Costs

£

1,703.00

500.00

5,995.00

8,112.13

3,670.59

1,821.90

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

300.00

1,300.00

9,000.00

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

50,916.00 -£

22,176.00

£

£

150.17 -£

80.00

66,085.76

Committed

620.00 £

5,167.00

47,194.00

Actual

Inner South Wellbeing Budget
2010 - 2012

-

-

-

377.00

-

-

-

-

-

1,260.87

3,927.99

-

3,000.00

17,000.00

0.00

Balance

£

SLAST

SLAST

Middleton Gala

Cottingley NIP

£

£

Projects agreed

Balance

49,289.38

396,512.01 £

£
£
£
£
£

£26,315.59

134,343.25

720.00
4,980.00
741.00
4,000.00
333.33

3,125.00

TOTAL

9,375.00
10,000.00
7,500.00
7,580.00
8,520.00
31,680.00
4,000.00
3,000.00
3,000.00
2,160.00
4,980.00
2,224.00
12,000.00
1,000.00
2,500.00
2,526.00
2,840.00
10,560.00

£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£

DAZL
Breeze Team
Health for All
Health for All
Leeds 2 Success
The Hunslet Club
Youth Service Middleton
Youth Service Middleton
Youth Service Middleton
South Leeds Music Centre
Cottingley Youth Project
The Works
SLAST
SLAST

DAZL Community Dance Leaders Project
Friday Night Project
Junior Reports
Little Chefs
Grand Jury
After School Vocational Training
Youth Celebrate
Holiday Youth Activities
Joined Up Generation Youth
SLMC Summer Project
Cottingley Youth Project Transition
Bike Maintainance & BMX course
Brochure - For Childen & Young People
Celebration Event

£

£

SLAST

Middleton Park Bins

£
£
£
£

1,000.00

3,000.00 £

£

Market Place Event

7,000.00

790.00

12,370.00

3,000.00

13,601.58

B&H

£790.00 £

£

3,000.00 £

5,000.00

2,230.00

13,601.58 £

Approved

Atha Street Bollards

Enhance Learning and Employability

£

£

£

Leeds Lights

Middleton & Belle Isle Christmas Lights

Delivery Organisation

HFA

Project

Appendix 1

Neighbourhood Worker

Page 67
741.00
4,000.00
333.33

£
£
£

£
£
£

742.00
4,000.00
333.34

3,125.00
10,000.00
2,500.00
2,527.00
2,840.00
10,560.00
4,000.00
3,000.00
3,000.00
720.00

7,000.00

£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£

1,000.00

5,000.00

2,230.00

£

£

£

MP

£35,970.59

-£12,996.80

£ 129,212.21 £ 132,956.55

720.00

2,500.00
2,527.00
2,840.00
10,560.00

3,125.00

1,000.00

12,370.00

£

£
£
£
£

£

£

£

C&H

£

£

2012/2013 Revenue Costs

79,816.23

1,210.21

£3,822.40

Actual

£ 163,224.76

£

£

£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£
£

£

£

£

£790.00

£

£

£

£

£12,370.00

£56.83

Committed

Inner South Wellbeing Budget
2010 - 2012

153,471.02

9,375.00
10,000.00
7,500.00
7,580.00
8,520.00
31,680.00
4,000.00
3,000.00
3,000.00
2,160.00
4,980.00
2,224.00
12,000.00
1,000.00

7,000.00

3,000.00

-

-

1,789.79

1,120.77

2,230.00

13,601.58

Balance

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68

Appendix 2

SOUTH INNER AREA COMMITTEE
WELL BEING FUND – SMALL GRANT APPLICATION
Organisation: Holbeck Gala
Project name: Community Printer
Funding requested: £900.00
Total costs: £900.00
Project Summary
Holbeck in Bloom & Friends of Holbeck Moor – together as Holbeck Gala would
like to apply for funding to purchase a laptop and printer for community purposes.
The Gala committee organise an annual event taking place on 6th July 2013. This
event takes a lot of time to organise and the use of a printer for letters etc is
essential to the smooth running of the Gala’s events. Other groups will also
benefit from the use of this equipment.
The committee is made up of twelve members who meet every month. The
benefit of this equipment will ultimately benefit all those members of the
community by providing good planning and a worthwhile event.
They are seeking £900 go towards the cost of the following :
Printer
£180.00
Internet dongle for a year £120.00
Laptop
£420.00
Computer Accessories
£180.00
Total

£900.00

This grant covers activities in both Beeston & Holbeck and City & Hunslet ward.
Area Committee Priorities
The project supports the Area Committee Business Plan’s Communities are
empowered and engaged. People get on well together priority.
Area Management recommendation
That this application for £900.00 should be approved subject to: supporting
documents being provided.

Page 69

Appendix 2

SOUTH INNER AREA COMMITTEE
WELL BEING FUND – SMALL GRANT APPLICATION
Organisation: Middleton Community Group
Project name: Running Costs for Middleton Community Group
Funding requested: £500.00
Total costs: £986.00

Project Summary
The group based at Middleton Community Centre are seeking funding to cover general
running costs of the Middleton Community Group in order to continue the hard work of
the group.
The committee has 8 members and public meetings are well attended by up to 30
residents as well as Ward Councillors, Police & Aire Valley Homes. The existence of the
Middleton Community Group benefits all residents and tenants in Middleton.
The aims of the project are to –
• Promote the interests of all residents in the area and to assist in maintaining
good relations between all members of the community.
• To promote all residents’ rights and the maintenance and improvement of
housing conditions, amenities and the environment.
• To promote social activities for all members of the community.
• To work towards elimination of all forms of discrimination within the community
by encouraging all members of usually excluded groups to participate in the
association.
• To work with social landlords, and other organisations for the benefits of all
residents.
• The association shall be non political.
The group help to run summer and winter fairs and galas, organise trips to the coast,
prints and delivers a quarterly newsletter promoting events and issues in the area,
communicates problems and issues to Councillors and the Police via its public meetings
and tries to make Middleton a better place to live.

Page 70

Appendix 2

They are seeking £500.00 go towards the cost of the following :
Printing of quarterly newsletter (£149 x4 by Active Print, Kirkstall)
Refreshments for public and committee meetings
Room hire for public meetings (£25 x6)
Room hire for committee meetings (£10 x12)

£596.00
£120.00
£150.00
£120.00

Total

£986.00

Other funding of £500.00 has been awarded from Aire Valley Homes as an annual
support grant.
This grant covers activities in the Middleton Park Ward.
Area Committee Priorities
The project supports the Area Committee’s priorities – Communities are empowered
and engaged. People get on well together theme.
Area Management recommendation
That this application for £500.00 should be approved subject to:
Supporting documents being provided.

Page 71

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72

Agenda Item 12
Report author: Gavin Forster
Tel: 2474310

Report of Area Leader – South East Leeds
Report to South Leeds (Inner) Area Committee
Date: Wednesday 13th February 2013
Subject: A Summary Of Key Work
Yes

Are specific electoral Wards affected?
If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

No

Beeston &
Holbeck
City &
Hunslet
Middleton
Park

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and
integration?

Yes

No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary of main issues and corporate governance considerations
1.

This report details a range of activities taking place within the Inner South Leeds Area,
some of which are dealt with in greater detail elsewhere on the agenda.

Recommendations
2.

The Area Committee is asked to:
a) note the contents of the report and make comment as appropriate.

Page 73

1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To bring to Members’ attention in a succinct fashion, brief details of the range of activities
with which the Area Support Team are engaged based on the Area Committee Business
Plan priorities, that are not addressed in greater detail elsewhere on this agenda. It
provides opportunities for further questioning or the opportunity to request a more
detailed report on a particular issue.

2.0

Background Information

2.1

Members will recall at the June 2011 Area Committee, a revised title and format for this
report was introduced based on proposed changes to the Leeds Initiative partnership and
planning framework for the city and in an effort to be more focused on current priorities.

3.0

Area Chairs Forum

3.1

Meetings

3.1.1 The last meeting of the group took place on the 10th January with the minutes being
approved at the next meeting of the group on 1st March.
3.1.2 The minutes of the meeting held on the 2nd November are attached as Appendix 1
4.0

Updates by theme: Children & Families – Cllr Gabriel

4.1

Children & Young People’s Sub-group

4.1.1 A meeting of the representative Councillors took place on the 25th January which focused
on the membership of the group and key actions going forward. This discussion was
timely with the recent recommendations being approved at the January Area Committee,
meant that it is an appropriate time to further enhance the working group.
4.1.2 The next meeting of the working group is being scheduled at the moment and will focus
on the development of the activities brochure.

5.0

Updates by theme: Safer Stronger Communities Board – Cllr Ogilvie

5.1

Inner South Environmental Sub-Group

5.1.1 The last meeting of the group took place on the 13th February, the minutes of which were
to be approved at the next meeting. The agenda included discussions on service
performance, delivery of SLA2 priorities and timetable for SLA3.
5.1.2 The minutes of the meeting held on the 15th October are attached as Appendix 2 for
noting.

Page 74

5.2

Community Safety – Cllr Groves

5.2.1 Crime and Grime Partnership
The next meeting of the South Leeds Crime and Grime Partnership is due to take place
on 30th January. An update on that meeting will be presented to the Area Committee via
the Summary of Key Work report at the March meeting.
5.2.2 Burglary Reduction Programme
The strategic burglary group has allocated £3000 to City and Holbeck Division for
burglary reduction activity during 2012/13. It has been agreed to allocate an amount of
£1000 to three NPTs in the Division (excluding City Centre) in order to provide a
subsidised reactive target hardening scheme to all burglary victims.
5.2.3 Burglary work in schools
A project to deliver burglary reduction advice to primary school pupils has been piloted in
the Middleton area. The project was developed by Leeds Community Safety and
delivered by Rothwell NPT to four primary schools (Middleton Primary, Westwood
Primary, St. Phillips Primary and St. Marys Primary). A burglary reduction package
targeting Year 7’s was developed that included a one hour lesson plan which can be
delivered by a teacher or an NPT representative. This is followed up by a home
assessment survey which the children take home to discuss and do with their parents /
guardians. It is now at the evaluation stage however the feedback from children and
teachers has been very positive. The aim is to review the project following the evaluation
and roll out to schools across Leeds.
5.2.4 Reducing alcohol related domestic violence
Members were briefed at the January meeting on the range of activity that has been
delivered by the South Leeds Alcohol Harm Reduction Partnership. Further progress
has been made on ensuring that Police Safeguarding officers are referring victims and
perpetrators to ADS where alcohol is a contributory factor in the domestic violence
incident. In the first month of the referral process being established 15 referrals were
made. ADS and the Safeguarding lead will review referrals and present an update on
outcomes achieved in April – this will be shared with the Area Committee after that date.
5.2.5 Reducing availability of cheap alcohol
A key focus of the South Leeds Alcohol Harm Reduction Partnership has been exploring
how to limit the availability of alcohol in communities with high levels of alcohol related
health and community safety issues. Following a discussion with the licensing sub group
in December, officers have set up a working group to progress the issue. The aim is to
develop a local licensing framework for LS10/11. This will involve the provision of
information to licence applicants about alcohol related concerns in the neighbourhood.
Members will be advised of progress at future meetings.

Page 75

6.0

Updates by theme: Health and Wellbeing – Cllr Truswell

6.1

Smoking OBA in Belle Isle

6.1.1 An Smoking OBA session took place on the 27th November to examine the topic of
Smoking in Belle Isle. Attendance was high at the session from a variety of individuals
working in the area and those working to address the agenda around smoking.
6.1.2 Videos were shared in relation to local residents and young peoples views in relation to:
- Why they think local people smoke.
- What they think would encourage local people to not start smoking / stop smoking.
- What would help individuals living in Belle Isle to become more healthy.
6.1.3 The following key themes came out of the session and work is currently been carried out
to the develop work programmes under the key themes that emerged from the workshop:
a) Demand for a local smoking cessation clinic.
b) Need for involvement with local schools and youth service provision in order to
promote smoking prevention and smokefree homes.
c) Local promotion of key relevant messages.
d) Addressing illicit tobacco sales.
e) Healthy Belle Isle, carry out local activity to address other healthy lifestyle topics and
the wider determinants of health in the Belle Isle area.
6.1.4 A copy of the action plan will be circulated and discussed at the Belle Isle & Middleton
NIB, and will be presented to all members at a future Area Committee meeting.
6.2

Obesity Review

6.2.1 The obesity review document was signed off at the 24th January Health & Wellbeing
Partnership. The next stage is for it to be circulated to relevant groups.
6.2.2 A pilot scheme is being developed to work in Middleton and will be coordinated through
the Neighbourhood Improvement Board and associated sub-group led by Cllr Truswell.
7

Integrated Locality working

7.1

Beeston, Holbeck & Hunslet Neighbourhood Improvement Board

7.1.1 The most recent meeting of the board took place on the 14th January 2013, the minutes
of the meeting will be presented to a future meeting.
7.1.2 The next meeting of the group is planned for the 22nd April 2013.

Page 76

7.2

Belle Isle & Middleton Neighbourhood Improvement Board

7.2.1 The last meeting of the Neighbourhood Improvement Board was held on the 4th
December 2012. The minutes of the meeting will be presented to members at a future
Area Committee meeting.
7.2.2 The next meeting of the group is planned for the 5th March 2013.
7.3

Cottingley Neighbourhood Improvement Plan

7.3.1 The latest meeting of the NIP took place on the 7th December 2012, the minutes will be
presented to a future Area Committee.
7.3.2 The next meeting of the group is planned for 25th January 2013.
8.0

Localism

8.1

Neighbourhood Planning Front Runners Pilot

8.1.1 The previous Area Committee was informed about the December meeting of the Holbeck
Neighbourhood Forum. (Draft minutes of the Forum 10th December meeting are attached
at Appendix 3). Following a presentation about the plans by Unity Housing Association
to provide new homes on the site of cleared houses on Brown Lane East/Runswick
Place, a small group of members of the Forum met a representative of Unity Housing
Association and of the Council’s City Development directorate to discuss the proposals in
more detail. As a result suggestions have been made about changes to carparking and
the access road and the need for improvement to other houses nearby so that the new
scheme blends in with the surrounding area. The small group of residents was happy to
support the planning application.
8.1.2 The next meeting of the Holbeck Neighbourhood Forum is being held on Saturday 23rd
February at 11.00 a.m. at St. Matthews Community Centre.
8.1.3 The first meetings of task groups to progress publicity and the content of the
Neighbourhood Plan are due to take place shortly. There will be engagement with local
businesses shortly to encourage to become involved with the Forum and Plan. Progress
is being made with developing the constitution of the Forum.
8.1.4 A support group continues to meet to support and guide the Holbeck work. The group
includes representatives of the three residents’ groups in Holbeck. The acting chair of
the Forum is being provided with continuing support by LCC Officers
9.0

Local Updates

9.1

Inner South Christmas Trees & Lights for 2013

9.1.1 To ensure a consistent and efficiently planned process for Christmas trees and lights for
2013 the South East Area Support Team will co-ordinate arrangements.

Page 77

9.1.2 The timetable for approval of schemes is as follows:
Action
New installations and alterations to existing displays
Liaison with Members to develop draft proposals for each
ward to be completed by:
Leeds Lights provide costings by:
Final confirmation of arrangements with Members:
Proposals for Area Committee approval:
Confirmation of Outer South arrangements with Leeds
Lights:

Deadline
1st March 2013
15th March 2013
20th March 2013
20th March 2013
31st May 2013

9.1.3 This project only effects Middleton Park ward and the details will be discussed in detail at
future ward based briefings.
9.2

Update to the merger of Joseph Priestley College and Leeds City College

9.2.1 Members have previously been presented with updates on the merger of Joseph Priestly
College and Leeds City College. An update on the progress is presented to members for
noting as Appendix 4.
10.0

Corporate Considerations

10.1

Consultation and Engagement

10.1.1 Projects are developed to address priorities in the Area Committee Business Plan. The
production of this plan is informed by Local Councillors and local residents. All projects
developed are in consultation with Elected Members and local communities. Approval for
any contribution from the Well being budget is secured at Area Committee.
10.2

Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration

10.2.1 Community groups submitting a project proposal requesting funding from the Well being
budget have an equal opportunities policy and as part of the application process,
complete a section outlining which equality groups the project will work with and how
equality and cohesion issues have been considered.
10.2.2 Internal and statutory partners are committed to equality and cohesion and all projects
they are involved with will have considered these issues.
10.2.3 A light touch Equality Impact Assessments is carried out for all projects.
10.3

Council Policies and City Priorities

10.3.1 The projects outlined in this report contribute to targets and priorities set out in the
following council policies:
•

Vision For Leeds

•

Children and Young Peoples Plan

Page 78

10.4

•

Health and Well being City Priority Plan

•

Safer and Stronger Communities Plan

•

Regeneration City Priority Plan

Resources and Value for Money

10.4.1 There are no resource implications as a result of this report.
10.5

Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In

10.5.1 All decisions taken by the Area Committee in relation to the delegated functions from
Executive Board are not eligible for Call In.
10.5.2 There are no key or major decisions being made that would be eligible for Call In.
10.5.3 There are no legal implications as a result of this report.
10.6

Risk Management

10.6.1 This report provides an update on work in the Inner South and therefore no risks are
identifiable. Any projects funded through Well being budget complete a section
identifying risks and solutions as part of the application process.
11

Conclusions

11.1

The report provides up to date information on key work areas of the Area Committee.

12

Recommendations

12.1

The Area Committee is asked to:
a) note the contents of the report and make comment as appropriate.

Background documents1
There are no background papers associated with this report

1

The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four years
following the date of the relevant meeting. Accordingly this list does not include documents containing exempt or
confidential information, or any published works. Requests to inspect any background documents should be
submitted to the report author.

Page 79

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80

Appendix 1
Area Chairs Forum
Friday 2nd November 2012
East Room, Civic Hall
Attendance:
Councillors: P. Gruen (Chair), G. Hyde, G. Hussain, G. Wilkinson, A. Gabriel, J. Akhtar, J.
McKenna, J. Jarosz
Officers: K. Kudelnitzky, R. Barke, J. Maxwell
Minutes: S. Warbis
Attending for specific items: K. Morton, I. Mackay
Item
1.0

Description

Action

Apologies

1.1

Cllr A McKenna, Cllr K. Bruce, Cllr P. Wadsworth, James Rogers, Shaid
Mahmood

2.0

Minutes and Matters Arising

2.1

The minutes of the previous Area Chairs Forum meeting on 11th September
2012 were agreed as an accurate record.

2.2

3.4 of previous minutes – Youth Service Review
Concerns were raised that Cllr Wilkinson was the only Conservative member
interviewed by the external consultant. It was pointed out that the consultant
spoke to all of the Area Committee Chairs, and that also the cross party
working group and scrutiny sub group were involved in the discussions.

2.3

7.5 of previous minutes – Area Working Review
It was suggested that concerns over the links between clusters and Area
Committees could have been stressed more in the minutes of the meeting. A
suggestion was made that Area Committee members could attend cluster
meetings, and vice versa.

3.0

Review of Youth Services / Update on Clusters

3.1

Ken Morton attended to provide a verbal update on the Review of Youth
Services, to give feedback from the Schools Forum and to discuss Area Chairs
involvement as the review progresses.

3.2

The Schools Forum met on 25th October and agreed to continue the current
funding of clusters for a further three years. It was agreed that governance
arrangements needed to be reviewed and that a task group would be facilitated
by Sue Rumbold, Chief Officer Partnership Development and Business Support
in Children’s Services. This would need to link into Area Committees and with
the Review of Area Working.

3.3

There would also be a review of the current formula for funding clusters
particularly in light of the changes to school funding around special needs
criteria.

3.4

A diagram was circulated showing a proposed Elected Member and Governors
structure for the Leeds Education Challenge Board. There is a proposal to have
an Elected Member and Governors Board for each of the three areas of East
North East, South, and West North West. It was suggested that each board
would have one Member from each of the clusters in that area.

3.5

As an interim position it was suggested that current representation by Members
on clusters would continue, but it was requested that Ken Morton advise the

Ken Morton

Page 1 of 6

Page 81

Appendix 1
Chief Officer Partnership Development and Business Support (Sue Rumbold)
that Area Committee Chairs would like to see proposals progressed that
enabled future appointments of Members on Cluster Boards to be made by Area
Committees.
3.6

Also a wider Governor network meeting has been proposed in each of the three
areas to make wider collaboration possible. This suggestion was supported by
Area Chairs. It was also suggested that within Area Committees some elected
members have had more experience of school clusters than others, and that
they should help support and inform those members who have previously had
less involvement.

3.7

It was mentioned that at the moment there was a degree of suspicion on both
sides between Area Committees and clusters. Cluster chairs have expressed an
interest in gaining more information about Area Committees and Area Support
Teams and this is matched by Area Chairs interest in clusters. There was a
desire for School Headteachers to have more involvement in community issues
locally and it was felt that by establishing better links between clusters and
Area Committees this could be enabled.

3.8

The report on the Review of Youth Services is no longer being taken to the
Executive Board in November. Although the Cross Party working Group and
Scrutiny Sub-group have had meetings recently, more member input is
required. It is clear that Elected Members will want to see the financial position
before a report is taken to Executive Board but, as with the overall council
budget, this picture is not clear yet. There is a need to stabilise this position
before any delegations are made to Area Committees as these issues should be
resolved before any control of the service is passed over.

3.9

The aim is to secure the cash resource for “breeze” type activities to be
delegated to Area Committees. Other areas of the service need to see a
conversion from a mainly staffing resource into a more flexible model.

3.10

A new specification for youth Services needs to be devised with potentially
commissioning being carried out at the three area levels. Simple procurement
is not the only model any more, and voluntary sector ambitions and capacity
also needs to be considered. It is no longer assumed that in house services will
have the major roll in this area. Input from Area Chairs will be required as this
specification is being developed.

3.11

There will be a significant restructuring of the service by September 2013 with
the intention of having fewer managers, more apprentices and more
experienced practitioners in the structure.

3.12

Area Chairs, and Area Committees, will be seen as the key clients and will need
to agree the specification for the commissioning of more targeted Youth
Services work. There will need to be significant input from elected members at
an area level in agreeing specifications.

3.13

The question of assets was raised and whether these would transfer across with
any delegations. There is not a clear view on this at the moment and this is
likely to need a separate piece of work. It was clear however that there would
need to be distinctions made between assets purely used locally and others,
such as Herd Farm, which provide a resource to the whole city.

3.14

It was viewed by the Area Chairs Forum that the direction of travel was right. It
was suggested that Children’s Services would need to lay out the Key
Performance Indicators and standards required to meet the needs of any
external inspection requirements, but that Area Committees should be given
the responsibility of meeting these locally.
Page 2 of 6

Page 82

Appendix 1
3.15

It was stressed that the transition of the service needed to begin in April 2013
and this should include the cash resource for the “things to do, places to go”
activities. Advice should be available from Children’s Services on
commissioning, but this should not be decided prior to delegation and Area
Committees should be in control of this.

3.16

It was suggested that discussions with Area chairs should be taking place
between now and the end of December on the design of a commissioning
framework.

3.17

There were comments from Area Chairs over the lack of clear timescales and
their inability at this time to explain to constituents what the changes to Youth
Services would entail. It was also mentioned that there needed to be more
integration with clusters, schools, jobs and skills around commissioned work
and that more imaginative events could be commissioned city wide to tackle
issues such as NEETs and citizenship.

3.18

It was felt that there needed to be more consultation with members regarding
the review. It was felt that drop in sessions were not the best way to consult
and that a way forward would be to organise presentations to Party Group
meetings.

3.19

Ken Morton agreed to confirm with Cllr Blake and Nigel Richardson that
presentations on the Review of Youth Services should be offered to Party Group
meetings.

Ken Morton

3.20

It was pointed out that there had not been an announcement, or clear
statement of intent, to the Executive Board over the proposal to transfer the
service. It was agreed that there is a requirement to take a report to executive
board showing this intention, and this could then be followed by a phased
implementation.

Ken Morton

3.21

There was a discussion over the current distribution of resources and how in
some cases this did not seem to match the needs of particular areas. It was
agreed that the current distribution model was flawed and needed Area Chair
input. Ultimately any changes would need political approval.

4.0

Neighbourhood Planning

4.1

Ian Mackay, Planning and Sustainable Development, attended to provide an
update on Neighbourhood Planning in Leeds and provided a briefing note.

4.2

Ian provided a brief background on the elements of Neighbourhood Planning
included in the Localism Act including Neighbourhood Plans, Neighbourhood
Development Orders and Community Right to build Orders. Neighbourhood
Plans must be in conformity with the Council’s Core Strategy, the National
Planning Policy framework and human rights and equality legislation, and can
also include non-planning interests as decided by local communities.

4.3

The Local Planning Authority is responsible for determining applications for
Neighbourhood Plan areas and designating Neighbourhood Forums. The Council
has a duty to support local communities however this support can be defined by
the local authority. The Council will also pay for and organise the examination
and referendum of the plan, although all issues relating to referendums are not
clear as yet.

4.4

It was agreed at Executive Board in June 2012 that Area Committees will have
a consultative role to play including advising, signposting, empowering and
providing mediation where necessary.

4.5

Area Committees are providing an increasingly valuable role in partnership and

Ken Morton

Page 3 of 6

Page 83

Appendix 1
delivery as the four pilots, and interest in other areas, is developing.
4.6

In our region Bradford has only one designated area so far, Kirklees is showing
no interest and Calderdale have had three expressions of interest but have no
designated areas. Leeds has 10 designated areas with the possibility of 15
further designations. Holbeck is seen by the Department for Communities and
Local Government (DCLG) as an exemplar for neighbourhood planning in the
inner city.

4.7

A table was provided within the briefing note listing potential roles associated
with neighbourhood planning that Area Committees may wish to consider.

4.8

The issue of the promotion of neighbourhood planning in inner city / deprived
areas was discussed. It was agreed that Area Committees would have differing
views on this, depending on the dynamics of particular areas, but that choices
to promote or disregard neighbourhood planning should be made on an
informed and considered basis.

4.9

Differing approaches are already being seen in different areas. North East Outer
Area Committee have provided funding for an officer to deal with
neighbourhood planning and are therefore seeing more activity in their area.
South East are looking at joint Area Committee funding for a post to cover a
wider area. It may be appropriate for these approaches to be considered and
debated in other areas as well. It was recognised however that certain Area
Committees may have greater priorities in their areas.

4.10

There was some debate over what the value of neighbourhood planning in inner
areas could be and how interested local people would be in taking this
approach. There was feedback from the Holbeck pilot that local people were
keen to influence the quality of development in their area and saw
neighbourhood planning as a way of influencing this.

4.11

It was agreed that learning should be taken from Holbeck and shared with
other areas. Some areas already have design statements which could be built
on. It was also pointed out that some areas already have good existing
community governance arrangements and that there should be care taken that
any new neighbourhood forums didn’t run counter to what was already in place.

4.12

It was mentioned that in the West the Neighbourhood Improvement Board
could be a potential forum for opening local discussions regarding
neighbourhood planning.

4.13

In response to a question about funding availability for community groups, Ian
Mackay pointed out that DCLG will provide £25,000 to the Local Planning
Authority for every neighbourhood plan that successfully passes the
examination. The funding letter from DCLG states that this money is intended
to cover the costs of the examination and referendum. Ian Mackay pointed out
that he has secured support from Planning Aid for any deprived area in Leeds
that wishes to prepare a neighbourhood plan.

4.14

It was pointed out that the non-planning opportunities that could be
incorporated into neighbourhood plans could be particularly valuable to inner
areas. Issues such as social responsibility can be built in and can influence
planning and development locally.

4.15

There was some scepticism over the resilience of neighbourhood plans and
whether they could be overruled centrally if disputes were made by developers.
It was pointed out that approved neighbourhood plans would be statutory
documents and would provide more certainty for an area. If plans are robust
there shouldn’t be any wriggle room although across the country they have yet
to be tested in disputes.
Page 4 of 6

Page 84

Appendix 1
4.16

It was mentioned that there has been interest expressed in New Wortley
regarding neighbourhood plans. Despite some contrary views, residents in inner
areas do have an interest in environmental and quality of life issues and do
have an interest in influencing decisions.

4.17

There was some doubt raised over the increased bureaucracy of having Area
Committees and Neighbourhood Forums involved in planning. There are already
plans panels in place and there is a risk of neighbourhood forums not being
fully representative of their areas. There was also some doubt that equality and
human rights issues would be fully covered within neighbourhood plans. It was
also suggested that the non-planning issues may be better dealt with through
other mechanisms.

4.18

It was agreed that there needed to be close links between Area Committees
and parish councils and also neighbourhood forums, to ensure that developing
neighbourhood plans were representative of the local area. It was reiterated
that where no parishes are in place, little would progress without the support of
Area Committees, and there needed to be a considered decision whether
neighbourhood plans would be appropriate or not in each area.

4.19

There was only time to discuss the first of the eight potential roles for Area
Committees within the briefing note. It was therefore agreed that a group
would be set up consisting of Ian Mackay, Kathy Kudelnitzky, Cllr James
McKenna, Cllr Ghulam Hussain and Cllr Angela Gabriel to discuss the potential
roles, and for their views to be circulated to Area Chairs Forum members in
advance of the next meeting on 10th January 2013.

Ian Mackay
/ Kathy
Kudelnitzky

4.20

Ian Mackay mentioned that Balsall Heath in Birmingham was another inner city
area that was making good progress with neighbourhood planning, and it was
suggested that there would be merit in visiting this area. Ian Mackay agreed to
provide Sarn Warbis with website details to be circulated to Area chairs Forum
members.

Ian Mackay
/ Sarn
Warbis

5.0

Review of Area Working Update

5.1

Kathy Kudelnitzky, Chief Officer Localities and Partnerships, provided a
progress update on the review of Area Working and a summary of proposed
recommendations for executive board.

5.2

Following consultation with Elected Members, Area Leaders, Directorates,
Service Managers and other stakeholders the review has sought to provide
feedback, views and recommendations across six objectives:

5.3

•

Powers and responsibilities delegated to Area Committees and other
locality-based arrangements;

•

Joint-working between the council’s Executive Board and Area
Committees;

•

Effectiveness of community and partner engagement through Area
Committees;

•

Effectiveness of partnership working at a local level;

•

Geography of our current locality-based working arrangements; and

•

Locality-based funding issues

Draft documents are to be considered by the All Party Working Group
immediately after this meeting, and will then be taken to Corporate Leadership
Page 5 of 6

Page 85

Appendix 1
Team on 6th November, a meeting of Cabinet on 12th November and then
through the clearance process to Executive Board on 12th December.
5.4

The Executive Board will be invited to agree both short and longer term
recommendations, with a project plan being developed over the next three
months for implementation. Elected member involvement, and particularly that
of Area Chairs, will be key to implementing recommendations within the review.

6.0

Any Other Business

6.1

Full Council Meeting
Cllr Gruen mentioned that at the next full council meeting Area Committees
would be on the order paper and that Area Chairs would be required to
contribute to discussions / questions if their particular areas were being
discussed. This is an opportunity to raise the profile of Area Committees and
should be taken advantage of.

6.1.1

It was suggested that Area Support Teams also had a role in promoting the
work of Area Committees. Local people and organisations are not always made
aware of the members’ role in decision making, approval of funding, and
support for successful initiatives and activities funded through the Area
Committees.

6.2

Wellbeing Update
Jane Maxwell, Area Leader West North West, tabled a paper providing a
snapshot of well Being Fund approvals and commitments for the current
financial year.

6.2.1

The figures show that some of the funding approved by Area Committees is still
working it’s way through the system, and Area support Teams are working with
Finance, as well as funded projects, to ensure that approved funding is
processed and updated on the council’s Financial Management System.

6.2.2

There are still concerns about the level of funding which is uncommitted spend
where currently no projects have been identified. Area Teams will work with
Area Chairs and Area Committees to review how much funding is available and
how elected members can support the development of local projects to apply
for the available Well Being resources.

6.2.3

More detailed spreadsheets are available to Area Chairs profiling individual
projects and their associated issues in clearing funds.

6.2.4

Solutions are being sought with finance to address the issue of allocated funds
remaining on Area Committee accounts where commitments have clearly been
made and but there are legitimate reasons for delays in the drawing down of
funds.

6.2.5

It was suggested that Executive Board needed to exert it’s influence over
particular Area Committees or wards where there was significant under use of
well being funds.

6.2.6

It was stressed that although there was a clear need to maximise this years
well being budgets, it was essential that funds were used for valid projects
meeting the priorities of each Area Committee. Maximising this years well being
budgets is a current priority for Area Leaders and Area Support Teams.

7.0

Date of Next Meeting

7.1

Wednesday 9th January 2013, 09:00 – 11:00, Committee Room 4 - Civic Hall

Page 6 of 6

Page 86

Appendix 2

Inner South Environmental Sub-Group
Monday 15th October 2012
10.00 a.m.
Dewsbury Road One Stop Centre

ATTENDANCE
Councillor Adam Ogilvie
Councillor Mohammed Iqbal
Councillor Paul Truswell
Kris Nenadic
Tom Smith
Ben Singer
Steve Ross
1.0
1.1

Ward Councillor
Ward Councillor
Ward Councillor
Parks and Countryside
Locality Manager
Leeds Federated H.A.
Area Support Team

Welcome and Introductions
Cllr. Adam Ogilvie welcomed everyone to the meeting.
Chris Simpson (BITMO) to be invited to attend the meetings.

2.0
2.1

Apologies
Tom O’Donovan, Mike Holdsworth.

3.0
3.1

Minutes of the meeting held on 20 April
The minutes of the last meeting were agreed as a true record.

4.0
4.1

Matters arising not elsewhere on the agenda
Derelict land/properties – Martin Hackett to be invited to provide an
update at a future meeting.

Standing items
5.0
Service Performance
5.1
Report was tabled by Tom Smith. Noted that NI 195 survey report is
to be available later in the year for the City and by Area Committee.
Problem with manual cleaning in Middleton Park was noted. Tom to
inform the appropriate Ward Members on the day if a scheduled
cleaning service was not going to run in a Ward on a particular day.
Noted that sickness/holiday absence can have a significant impact
on the service. Work is being carried to develop the flexibility of the
service. Generally good figures for mechanical cleaning.
5.2
Tom to provide figures showing the distribution of litterbins across
the area.
5.3
79% of flytipping problems removed within the two days SLA target
in Inner South.
5.4
Emptying of full litter bins: further work to be done on the data.
Frequency of emptying to be reviewed for problematic bins.
5.5
Priority ginnels – surveys are underway; some actions have already
been agreed. AVHL to undertake management of ginnels on their
estates. Consolidated list of ginnels and action to be provided.

Page 87

ACTION

Steve

Steve

Tom S

Tom S
Tom S
Tom S

Tom S

5.6
5.7
5.8

5.9

6.0
6.1
6.2
6.3

6.4

Tom to check why Back Lane is not on the list of ginnels.
Members to decide priorities for Ward patrols.
Enforcement activity: Tom to check why there’s not been more
activity in Middleton Park Ward.
Many of the domestic waste issues related to binyards –
enforcement action is being taken e.g. a recent successful action
against a tenant but issue needs a long term solution. Some
binyards to be demolished in Holbeck but there is an issue about
the subsequent status of the land. Need to have more than one
approach e.g. some landlords may wish to take on responsibility for
particular binyards. Possible incentive for landlords to release
ownership to one landlord to take action?
Cllr Iqbal raised issue of Brompton View – one former binyard area
needs tarmacking. Landlord to be contacted and / or area to be
tarmacked.
Delivery of SLA 2 Priorities
Actions in Priority Neighbourhoods: mechanical cleaning blocks to
be reviewed – hope to increase frequency in inner and outer south.
Actions in relation to Education and Enforcement: more action being
taken about duty of care of shops.
Partnership working: models of integrated working on environmental
services being developed with possible changes being introduced
by April 2013.
Dog fouling: PCSOs have now been trained to provide witness
statements. Tom is seeking clarification from the Police about why
PCSOs won’t take direct enforcement action. Cllr Iqbal said dog
fouling was a particular issue in Beeston Hill, especially in the lodge
Lane/Tempest Road/Clovellys/Westbournes/Bromptons area. Dog
owners need to be educated. Dog fouling (and litter issues) to be
focus of work in this priority area. Cllr Ogilvie noted that Cardinals
residents had pushed for targeted work on dog fouling and this had
lead to improvement. Cllr Iqbal wanted the community involvement
in cleaning Beeston Hill to start again when the weather improves.

Tom S
Tom S

Tom S/Steve

Tom S
Tom S

Tom S

Tom S

7.0
7.1

Review of Locality Regulatory Service
Tom reported that he is in consultation with the unions about how to
implement the new structure which will re-balance services.

Tom S

8.0
8.1

Any Other Business
Six months SLA 2 report to be considered by this sub group before
submission to the Area Committee.

Tom S

9.0
9.1

Date and time of next meeting
Schedule of dates to be drafted – four meetings a year.

Tom S/Steve

G:\SE-Area-Management\Inner South\1 Area Committee\5. Sub groups\Environmental Sub group\Meetings\7 - x x .12\Env
sub group mins 15.10.12.doc

Page 88

2

Appendix 3

Holbeck Neighbourhood Forum Meeting
Minutes from Meeting
10th December 2012
Attendees:

Councillor Angela Gabriel
Councillor David Congreve
Councillor Adam Ogilvie
Mike Dando (Planning Aid
England)
Anne Hopper (Holbeck Area
Residents Association)
Ian Pickup (Holbeck in Bloom)
Dennis Kitchen (Voice of
Holbeck)
Ann Hepburn
Roy Cadman
Anne-Marie Ward
David Ward
Neil Ward
Joanne Ward
Steven Blackburn
Steve Peacock (Cross Ingrams
Residents Association)
Lucy Potter
Dawn Wright
John Leckenby
Tony Ray (Planning Aid
Volunteer)
Andy Picken (Health For All)
John Baron (South Leeds Life)
Tony Van de Bospoort (Hunslet
and Hobeck Heritage Project)
Neil Diamond (Aire Valley
Homes Leeds)

Apologies:

PCSO Claire Leech (West
Yorkshire Police)
Alan Lane
Steve Ross
John Cummings (Groundworks)
Christine Davies

Interim Chair: Dennis Kitchen

Page 89

Ken Tidswell (Friends of Holbeck
Cemetery)
Eve Tidswell (Friends of Holbeck
Cemetery)
Harvey Pritchard (Planning
Aid/Leeds Met University)
Kirsty Sharpe (Planning Aid
Volunteer)
William Sparling
Rebecca Robson (Planning Aid
Volunteer)
Joe Varga (Planning Aid Volunteer)
Adam Greatrix
Jennifer Kirkby
Christine Schofield
Dan Starkey (Planning Aid
Volunteer)
Simon Bradley
Steve Williamson
Wayne Noteman (Unity HA)
Deborah Kirkley (West Yorkshire
Police)
PCSO 610 Steve Marriott (West
Yorkshire Police)
Diane Whiteside (West Yorkshire
Police)
Ian Mackay (LCC)
Tom Ridley (LCC)
John Hall (LCC)
James Kilroy (LCC)

Appendix 3
th

The minutes were agreed for the previous meeting on 25
October 2012.
1.

Neighbourhood Plan update
Dennis Kitchen (Interim Chair) updated the Forum on
progress made since the last meeting:
Constitution – A draft constitution has been sent to Beth
Logan (Leeds City Council) for comment. Dennis stressed the
importance of getting the constitution right.
Publicity – Leaflets and letterheads have been produced
which will be posted to businesses. Dennis mentioned he had
recently spoken at an event in Sheffield on the Holbeck
Neighbourhood Forum.
Finances – Members were reminded that a bank account
cannot be opened until constitution is approved. Anne Hopper
and Ian Pickup have agreed to be joint treasurers.
Membership – Approximately 20 members signed up to the
Forum after the last meeting. A further 60 signed up at the
Holbeck Christmas Fair on the 1st December. The next step is
to make contact with businesses.

2.

Next Steps
Ian Mackay (Leeds City Council) was asked what the next
step was in terms of designation. Ian outlined the following
key points:
•

•
•

The most pressing concern is the lack of
business representation. Ian pointed out that
the Forum must be fully representative, and
urged members to contact businesses in the
area and get them to sign up (particularly in
areas 2 and 3).
He hoped businesses will offer sponsorship and
support.
An application for designation could be made
end of February/March.

Dennis picked up on Ian’s point about contacting business. He
said the next step was to send a letter and information pack
out to businesses and, to see them in person. Dennis asked
if any members were interested in helping contact local
businesses.
Dennis said that more needed to be done to raise awareness

Page 90

Action

Action

Appendix 3
of the Neighbourhood Plan among residents. He suggested
producing a newsletter which could be posted through
letterboxes, while Ian thought a website would be a good
idea. Jennifer Kirkby, who has some experience setting up
websites, kindly offered her time and expertise.
Mike Dando (Planning Aid England) said that Jo Hill (a
Planning Aid volunteer) had kindly agreed to assist with the
setting up and running of the Publicity task group. An email
with details of the first meeting would be circulated to all those
who had shown an interest in joining the group (according to
Dennis, 6 people have shown an interest).
Ian and Dennis said that, in order to maintain interest, the
Forum should think about ‘short term wins’, as well as longer
term objectives, and perhaps me something more akin to a
Community Forum.
3.

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) update
Dennis asked Ian to update the group on the Holbeck PFI
scheme.
Ian assured the Forum that the PFI scheme was ‘still very
much on’. Ian pointed out that considering the recession, the
fact the PFI was still pressing ahead demonstrated the
commitment the Council has to the scheme. Although he
wasn’t able to go into detail, a lot of work was ‘being done
behind the scenes’. He assured members that the
specification hadn’t changed and that it would be the same
number of homes and to the same design and density.
Concern was expressed among some members about
information and delays with the scheme.
Dennis highlighted the importance of communication and
openness. Despite the concerns over the PFI, he was
pleased that other things did seem to be moving forward. He
used the Post Office moving to Domestic Street and
occupying a more prominent position as an example (he
hoped the Post Office would have moved by March).

4.

Challenges
Dennis spoke about the importance of local residents
becoming more involved, having more responsibility and
taking ownership of the Plan.
A Forum member complained that many residents don’t feel
they have any power to influence planning, and therefore are

Page 91

Action
J Kirkby

Action
M Dando/
J Hill

Appendix 3
not interested in getting involved. It was agreed that more
publicity and greater networking between community
groups would help to resolve this.
Anne Hopper said that, while residents are quite happy to
voice their views, they are often negative and don’t help move
the discussion on. Anne believed that by showing residents
they can make a difference, people would get involved.
A couple of Forum members also spoke about the opportunity
to get children involved (maybe helping out with producing
posters) and strengthen links with Ingram Road Primary
School. It was also agreed that it would be a good idea to
promote the Forum at other Holbeck community events.

5.

Action

Next Meeting
It was agreed that the next meeting would be Saturday 23rd
February 11am – 1pm, at St. Matthews Community Centre.
It was suggested that the meeting on the 23rd could begin to
focus on the content of the plan and could involve a display
and series of workshops. Refreshments will be provided.
Dennis was asked what progress would be made between
now until February.
Dennis listed 5 things he hoped would be compete by the time
the Forum reconvened;
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

6.

Have the constitution approved
Set up a bank account
Contact and sign up businesses in areas 2
and 3
Find out more about the PFI
Step up publicity and create website

Brown Lane East
The final item on the agenda was a talk by James Kilroy
(Leeds City Council) and Wayne Noteman (Unity Housing) on
the redevelopment of the Brown Lane East site.
The schemes main points;
•
•
•
•

A mix of 18 2x bedroomed flats and 23 family
houses (17x 3 bedroom and 6 x 4 bedroom)
100% Affordable housing
For rent and shared ownership purchase
Better Energy efficient (Code for Sustainable

Page 92

Actions

Appendix 3

•
•
•

•
•
•

Homes Level 3)
Will help to create an attractive boulevard linking
Brown Lane East with Mathew Murray site
Funded by Homes and Community Agency.
Unity HA & the Council wish to work with the
forum to develop the scheme in preparation of
submitting a planning application early 2013 and
be on site Summer 2013
Not part of the PFI but will complement the PFI
Opportunity for local employment
A Local Lettings plan will be developed giving
local residents preference for the properties
once completed

Concerns were raised about affordability1 and the re-housing
of former tenants2.
James and Wayne said they were keen to get formal
feedback from the Forum. Dennis said a small group would
meet to discuss the proposal and report back at the next
Forum meeting. Most were happy to hear that things were
progressing.

Action
D Kicthen

After thanking people for attending, Dennis closed the
meeting.

1

There may have been some confusion over what was meant by ‘part ownership’. People won’t have
to buy the property outright, but can own a ‘share’.
2
Former tenants have been re-housed.

Page 93

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94

Appendix 4
Update to the merger of Joseph Priestley College and Leeds City College
On 1st August 2011 Joseph Priestley merged with Leeds City College. The College
undertook to update the councillors of South Leeds on a regular basis on progress
and implications for South Leeds.
The focus of the first 15 months has been to align services and the curriculum offer
and to address staffing structures and management issues. This has been done
whilst maintaining a strong focus on students and their experience. Every effort has
been made to minimise any negative impact of the merger on students, staff and the
employers we work with. It is still early days for the merger but the overall stability it
has brought, both now and for the future, should be noted as a positive.
The College has acquired the Print works. This is part of the overall property strategy
of the College. Initially the College will only develop and use part of the building with
further development over the next 10 years. The buildings will house several
important vocational faculties including Hospitality and Catering and Hair and
Beauty. This will provide more accessible progression to higher level programmes
from former Joseph Priestley sites.
Funding has also been secured from a Capital renewal Fund from the Skills Funding
Agency, to contribute to the redevelopment of the Campus in Morley. This may
involve a new or existing building being developed into a Campus to serve the
community and provide an improved learning environment and facilities. Planning is
in the very early stages but this marks the commitment the college has to providing
learning locally.
The future curriculum offer is under discussion covering what can and should be
offered as full time provision for the 16 to 18 age group. No major changes are
planned for the immediate future other than the addition of retail as an option as the
retail sector offers significant career opportunities in Leeds.
The offer for adults wanting to enhance their skills and qualifications has been
reviewed. Government funded adult provision is focused on employability and
includes a continued emphasis on literacy, numeracy and IT skills. For 12/13 the
offer includes Routeways to Work programmes developed with Jobcentre Plus for
Jobcentre Plus referrals. This includes a Retail programme, Security qualifications,
Health and Social Care provision, Esol, Literacy and Numeracy and employability
skills.
The partnership working with Employment Leeds, Land Securities and Jobcentre
Plus and Leeds City College, focussing on the White Rose Learning Centre now
called ‘The Point’ has resulted in the delivery of routeways to work for unemployed
adults locally for South Leeds residents and full time retail learners having some of
their classes in a real work environment. Delivery began in June 2012 with the
programme initially reflecting demand from Jobcentre Plus but will evolve through
negotiation with wider stakeholders.
The provision for young adults with Learning Difficulties and Disabilities is being
maintained at the Joseph Priestley centre. The College is actively working with

Page 95

Appendix 4
Childrens’ Services, schools; SILCS and Social care to build a city wide offer which
is responsive to needs and the SEN agenda.
The SAIL (Supporting Achievements in Learning) programme for those not in
education, employment or training continues to be delivered at the South Leeds Hub.
The curriculum offer at the hub has been developed and extended and is being relaunched this spring term focussing on a broad definition of NEET, to include 16- 24
and the wider family that can influence a young person’s future. The College is
working city wide to build and strengthen working relationships between IGEN,
Prospects, Connexions, and voluntary sector organisations to inform the curriculum
offer and facilitate take up of the offer.
No major changes to the Joseph Priestley buildings in Beeston and Rothwell are
planned other than rebranding, routine maintenance and upgrading of the facilities.
Funding has been secured from a Capital renewal Fund from the Skills Funding
Agency, to contribute to the redevelopment of the Campus in Morley, this may
involve a new or existing building being developed into a Campus to serve the
community, and provide an improved learning environment and facilities. Planning is
in the very early stages, but this marks the commitment the college has to providing
learning locally.
Joseph Priestley staff and managers are steadily being integrated into the Leeds City
College faculties and departments. For some there have been welcome
opportunities to take on more responsibility. The Joseph Priestley sites have been
incorporated into Leeds City College’s Community faculty with Inner South focussing
on integrating the programmes at Beeston and Burton Road and Outer South
focussing on Rothwell and Morley. Management posts are still being recruited to. In
addition to support the South Leeds agenda a dedicated development worker post
was recruited and is actively working with stakeholders locally.
The merger will enable the College to make a stronger contribution to the
regeneration of the south of Leeds and to work with other agencies to narrow the
educational achievement gap. The College is focused on building pathways to higher
level qualifications and supporting individuals to progress. The opportunities to plan
across the city should bring significant benefits and the improved coherence of
provision will enable us to target resources to the areas of greater need.
Area Committee is asked to note the progress made since the merger.

Page 96

